# **MASTER AGREEMENT**

BETWEEN

# BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE DOWNEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND

# CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION AND ITS DOWNEY CHAPTER #248

October 1, 2022

through

September 30, 2025

# **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

*President* Barbara R. Samperi

Vice President Martha E. Sodetani

*Clerk* Giovanna Perez-Saab

Members D. Mark Morris Jose J. Rodriguez Linda Salomon Saldaña Nancy A. Swenson

Superintendent John A. Garcia, Jr., Ph.D.

> District Website: www.dusd.net

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	1
ARTICLE I - AGREEMENT	2
ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE III - DEFINITIONS	3
ARTICLE IV - ORGANIZATIONAL RIGHTS	5
ARTICLE V - MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS	6
ARTICLE VI - RENEGOTIATIONS: PROCEDURES	7
ARTICLE VII - DUTY HOURS	7
ARTICLE VIII - SALARIES	11
ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS	13
ARTICLE X - RELEASE TIME	14
ARTICLE XI - LEAVES	15
ARTICLE XII - TRANSFER	25
ARTICLE XIII - SAFETY/UNIFORMS	26
ARTICLE XIV - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND EVALUATION	27
ARTICLE XV - RESTRICTION ON CONTRACTING OUT	29
ARTICLE XVI - COMPLAINT PROCEDURE RELATING TO RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES	
ARTICLE XVII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	29
ARTICLE XVIII - NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION (AB119)/(SB191)	31
Article XIX - LAYOFF (AB438)	33
ARTICLE XX - SAVINGS CLAUSE	36
ARTICLE XXI - SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT	37
ARTICLE XXII - NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT	37
ARTICLE XXIII - ZIPPER CLAUSE	37
ARTICLE XXIV - TERM OF AGREEMENT	37

APPENDIX A - UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE	38
APPENDIX B - COST OF COVERAGE (BENEFITS)	47
APPENDIX C - 2022-23 SCHOOL CALENDAR	53
APPENDIX D - STEP ADVANCEMENT LANGUAGE FROM RULES AND REGULATIONS	54

# **ARTICLE I - AGREEMENT**

This agreement is made and entered into between the Downey Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as the District, and the California School Employees Association and its Downey Chapter #248, hereinafter referred to as the Association or C.S.E.A.

# **ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION**

The District hereby acknowledges that C.S.E.A. and its Downey Chapter #248 is the exclusive bargaining representative, as granted by the Downey Unified School District on March 7, 1977, for all classified employees in Unit I holding positions as classified below:

- 1. Accounting Assistant
- 2. Adult School Registrar Assistant
- 3. ASB Accounting Technician
- 4. Assistant Buyer
- 5. Attendance/Records Clerk
- 6. Budget Financial Analyst
- 7. Buyer
- 8. Campus Security Assistant
- 9. Child Care Assistant
- 10. Clerical Assistant
- 11. College and Career Technician
- 12. Communication Center Assistant
- 13. Communications Specialist
- 14. Early Learning Assistant
- 15. Early Learning Instructor
- 16. Financial Aid Technician
- 17. Food Service Assistant
- 18. Food Service Assistant II
- 19. Food Service Helper
- 20. Instructional Assistant
- 21. Instructional Assistant Adult School
- 22. Instructional Asst. Computer Applications
- 23. Instructional Assistant Dental
- 24. Instructional Assistant Massage Therapy
- 25. Instructional Assistant Nursing
- 26. Instructional Media Technician
- 27. Intermediate Accounting Assistant
- 28. Intermediate Clerical Assistant
- 29. Intermediate School Office Manager
- 30. Lead Food Service Assistant
- 31. Lead Sign Language Interpreter

- 32. Payroll Technician
- 33. Personnel Assistant
- 34. Personnel/Credentials Technician
- 35. Personnel/Payroll Assistant (Adult School)
- 36. Physical Education Assistant
- 37. Pupil/Support Services Technician
- 38. Purchasing Assistant
- 39. Registered Behavior Technician
- 40. Registrar
- 41. School Based Therapist
- 42. School Health Technician
- 43. School Office Manager
- 44. Secretary
- 45. Senior Accounting Assistant
- 46. Senior Accounting Technician
- 47. Senior Clerical Assistant
- 48. Senior Instructional Assistant
- 49. Senior Instructional Assistant Behavior
- 50. Senior Instructional Assistant Medical
- 51. Senior Instructional Assistant Sign Language
- 52. Senior Personnel Technician
- 53. Senior School Office Manager
- 54. Senior Secretary
- 55. Sign Language Interpreter
- 56. Special Education Data & Compliance Specialist
- 57. Special Education Technician
- 58. Speech/Language Pathology Assistant
- 59. Student Information Systems Operator
- 60. Student Testing Technician
- 61. TLC Resource Center Assistant
- 62. Translator/Interpreter

The District and the Association agree to add any appropriate classified positions created, or whose title has changed since the last contract, to the list of bargaining unit classifications.

Excluded from the unit shall be the assistant to the Superintendent, and secretaries to the Assistant Superintendents, which shall be confidential.

All newly created classifications, except certificated, management, confidential (which include Administrative Secretary; Senior Secretary, Director, Budget and Finance; and Senior Secretary, Classified Human Resources), and supervisory employees, as defined in Government Code Section 3540 shall be assigned to the appropriate bargaining unit. For all other positions that are currently designated as "Confidential," once the current employee leaves his/her position that position will revert to a Unit membership. Disputed cases by either party shall be submitted to the Public Employment Relations Board for resolution.

A C.S.E.A. membership application and new member packet, as well as a copy of the collective bargaining agreement, will be provided to all newly hired employees eligible for membership.

# **ARTICLE III - DEFINITIONS**

- 1. "Association" shall mean the California School Employees' Association, Chapter 248, or its designee.
- 2. A "day" is a day when the District office is open for business.
- 3. "Distasteful duty" refers to any procedure that is invasive and/or involves bodily fluids, medical procedures, or special sanitary cleaning of normally unexposed body parts when such is not part of the employee's regular assignment.
- 4. "Emergency" shall mean any sudden or unforeseen situation which requires immediate action, such as flood, earthquake, natural disasters, or unforeseen combination of circumstances, which call for immediate action.
- 5. "Employee" shall mean a member of the bargaining unit.
- 6. "Evaluator" shall mean the chief administrative officer, or designee, of the school or department to which an employee is assigned and by whom the employee is evaluated.
- 7. "Extra Hours" shall mean hours worked in a day over the required assignment up to eight (8) hours.
- 8. "Grievance" shall mean a claim of any employee or C.S.E.A. concerning the interpretation or application of the expressed written terms of this Agreement, which interpretation or application adversely affects the employee or C.S.E.A., and which has not been resolved satisfactorily in an informal manner between the employee and the immediate supervisor.
- 9. "Immediate family" is the spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, stepparent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, aunt or uncle, niece or nephew of the employee or of the spouse or registered domestic partner of the employee, and the stepchild, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law of the employee; or any person living in the immediate household of the employee.

- 10. "Immediate supervisor" shall mean that member of the District's management team that has immediate jurisdiction over an employee and has been designated to adjust written grievances at the first level.
- 11. "Limited Term" refers to an employee who is serving in a provisional appointment, or as a substitute for a regular employee, or in a position established for a limited period of no more than six (6) continuous months.
- 12. "Management employee" means any employee in a position having significant responsibilities for formulating District policies or administering District programs. Management positions shall be designated by the District subject to review by the Public Employment Relations Board.
- 13. "New Employee" or "New Hire" means any employee, whether permanent, full time, or part time, hired by the District. It includes all employees who are or have been previously employed by the District and whose current position has placed them in the bargaining unit.
- 14. "New Employee Orientation" means the onboarding process of a newly hired employee, whether in person, online or through other means or mediums, in which employees are advised of their employment status rights, benefits, duties and responsibilities or any other employment-related matters.
- 15. A "permanent employee" is an employee who has successfully completed his/her initial probationary period in the District's classified service.
- 16. "Personnel Commission" shall mean the non-partisan public body responsible for the administration of the (merit system) classification, selection, retention, and promotion of classified employees in the Downey Unified School District.
- 17. A "probationary employee" is an employee serving the initial six (6) months in a permanent position following his/her appointment from an eligibility list.
- 18. "Probationary period" is the trial period of six (6) months or one hundred thirty (130) days of paid service, whichever is longer, immediately following an original or promotional appointment to a permanent position from an eligibility list.
- 19. "Promotion" is a change in the assignment of an employee from a position in one class to a vacant position in another class with a higher maximum salary rate.
- 20. "Reassignment" means a change in assignment within the employee's job classification at the same job site or a different site, under the direction of the same supervisor.
- 21. "Seniority" is to be computed from date of District hire minus any breaks in service. Time spent on unpaid illness leave (except CFRA), or unpaid industrial accident leave shall not be counted for length of service credit.
- 22. "Transfer" means a change of job site within the same position classification under the direction of a different supervisor.

# **ARTICLE IV - ORGANIZATIONAL RIGHTS**

C.S.E.A. Downey Chapter #248 shall have the following rights in addition to the rights contained in any other portion of this Agreement:

- A. The right of access by authorized Association representatives shall be granted at reasonable times for purposes of grievance investigations providing there is prior notification to the employee's immediate supervisor. Association business will be conducted before and after working hours or during lunch periods and breaks.
- B. The right to use without charge institutional bulletin boards at work sites, mailboxes, email, and the use of the school mail system for purposes of communication, posting or transfer of information or notices concerning C.S.E.A. Downey Chapter #248.
- C. The right to use without charge institutional equipment, facilities, and buildings at reasonable times under provisions of a Civic Center permit.
- D. The right to be supplied with a complete seniority roster of all bargaining unit employees upon request when established by the Director, Classified Human Resources, and for the purpose of layoff.
- E. The right to receive one (1) copy of any budget or public financial material submitted at any time to the governing board and regular board agendas.
- F. The right for any employee in the bargaining unit to receive a copy of the District Personnel Commission's Classified Rules and Regulations upon request.
- G. <u>Distribution of the Contract</u>: Within forty-five (45) days after signing of contract, the District will make contract available on the District's website and will print 100 copies for the association and those unit members who request them, at no cost to the Association. Copies will be provided to each school office manager and a hard copy will be available to all new employees, if requested.
- H. <u>Maintenance of Membership</u>: Each employee covered by this Agreement who on the effective date of Agreement is a member of C.S.E.A., and each employee covered by this Agreement who becomes a member after that date, shall maintain his/her membership in C.S.E.A., Downey Chapter #248, during the term of this Agreement.
- I. Dues Deduction:
  - 1. The Association has the exclusive right to have employee organization membership dues deducted by the District from the wages or salary of employees in the bargaining unit in accordance with the provisions of this agreement.
    - A. The District shall cause payroll deductions to be made in accordance with the District's procedures and Association's dues schedule.
    - B. The District shall begin automatic payroll deduction after receipt of such written notice from the Association specifying the names of the unit employees and the amount of the dues for each such employee.

Payroll deductions shall be processed in accordance with standard District operating procedures from the first day of the month following forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt by the District of the written notice directing dues payroll deduction.

- C. The Association may specify a change in the amount of the dues provided an authorized Association officer submits a written notice to the District for such an adjustment. The processing of revised payroll deductions will be in accordance with the schedule referenced above.
- D. The District shall, without charge, transmit to the Association the sums deducted under this agreement.
- 2. The Association agrees to indemnify and financially hold harmless the District, its Governing Board, officers and administrators against any and all claims, demands, costs, lawsuits, including attorney fees incurred in defending said persons or District, or any other form of liability or expense, including but not limited to, all court or administrative agency costs, that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the District for the purpose of complying with this agreement. The District shall promptly notify the Association of any civil, administrative, or other action taken against the District as a result of its compliance with this agreement.

### **ARTICLE V - MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS**

It is understood and agreed that the District retains all the customary rights, powers, functions, and authority to control and manage and to discharge its obligations as provided by law and the State and Federal Constitutions.

Any of the rights, powers, or authority which the District had prior to the execution of this Agreement are retained except as those rights, powers, and functions or authority which are specifically abridged or modified by this Agreement or by any supplement to this Agreement arrived at through the process of collective bargaining.

District reserved duties and rights include, but may not be limited to: determine its organization; direct the work of the employees; determine the kinds of and levels of service and the methods and means of providing them; determine the number and kind of personnel required; maintain the efficiency of the District's operation; build or modify buildings and facilities; establish budget procedures and funding priorities for determining methods of revenue; determine the hours of operation; establish its educational policies, goals, and objectives; insure the rights and educational opportunities of students; determine the curriculum; in addition, the District and its designee retains the right to hire, classify, assign, evaluate, terminate, and discipline its employees, except as limited by the Personnel Commission and/or this contract; plan and oversee all staff development, with the assistance of C.S.E.A., for this unit, which will be provided only when funding is available; and to amend or rescind provisions of this Agreement in case of emergency. Emergency shall mean any sudden or unforeseen situation which requires immediate action, such as flood, earthquake, natural disaster, or unforeseen combination of circumstances which call for immediate action. Any amendment or deviation of this Agreement shall be only for the duration of the emergency.

# **ARTICLE VI - RENEGOTIATIONS: PROCEDURES**

- A. The Association shall submit to the Board of Education, Salary and Benefit Articles and one (1) for reopener negotiations for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 school years. Reopener proposals shall be submitted by the last Board of Education meeting in May. Negotiations shall commence within a reasonable time period after the parties' proposals have been sunshined to the public at a Board meeting.
- B. Regularly scheduled negotiation meetings shall be established on a reasonable and mutually agreed basis between the respective bargaining teams, normally at the beginning of bargaining for a successor agreement.

# ARTICLE VII - DUTY HOURS

A notice will be sent at the beginning of each school year to all principals, special education department chairs, job stewards, and chapter president, stating that classified employees will not be used in lieu of certificated employees. A copy of the notice will be sent to C.S.E.A. District will provide training, including training in the administration of breathing treatments to appropriate staff as needed.

<u>Calendar</u>: The District and Association shall meet annually and work cooperatively with the Downey Educator's Association to develop the District and all classified work calendars for the following school year, or multiple school years. The parties shall meet no later than November 1<sup>st</sup> to negotiate future calendars.

<u>Catering and Special Events</u>: When not performed by a supervisor, catering and special events shall be served by employees in order of seniority from a voluntary sign-up sheet distributed the first of each month.

<u>Working Hours</u>: The working hours for all employees shall be scheduled by the immediate supervisor in conformance with the guidelines and needs established by the District. The District shall notify and confer with the employee ten (10) working days prior, or less if mutually agreed upon with the employee and supervisor, to affecting any permanent change in the starting and ending time of the work day. School based employees assigned fewer than twelve (12) months per year, will be assigned to work and will be paid appropriately when students are present and/or when teachers are in a paid status during the regular academic year, except for days excluded through negotiations.

Accumulated vacation (unless addressed in Article XI), if any, may be used by these employees on non-paid days in any of the months in which they are regularly assigned to work.

<u>Assigned Work Time – Procedures for Increasing</u>: The District reserves the right to increase the assigned time of employment for bargaining unit members when programmatic changes or increased funding occurs.

#### Section I

The following Section applies to all Unit I classifications not specified in Section II below.

A. Occupied Positions - When an increase in assigned time for a subject position that is currently occupied by a regular employee is approved by a School Administrator or Department supervisor, the additional assigned time shall be offered to the employee currently in the position.

Refusal of Increase in Time

- i. If the regular employee who is offered the increase in assigned time for the subject position refuses the addition of assigned work hours, regular employees in the same classification, who are willing and able to work the increase in assigned time, shall be offered the position by seniority who meet the following criteria:
  - 1. The employee has completed a request for the increase for assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.
  - 2. The employee is currently assigned the same number of hours as the subject position prior to the increase in assigned time.
  - 3. The employee has received in the most recent performance evaluation an overall rating of "Average" or "3" or higher.
- ii. Upon selection of the employee, the current incumbent of the position with the increase in assigned time shall be administratively reassigned to the requesting employee's prior position and assigned work hours.
- iii. If there are no other employees willing to accept the increase in assigned time, the employee currently in the position shall be provided a second opportunity to accept the increase in assigned time or be considered for an alternative assignment.
- B. Vacant Positions When an increase in assigned time for a subject position that is currently vacant is approved by a School Administrator or Department supervisor, the additional assigned time shall be allocated to the employee in the following.
  - i. The vacant position shall be offered to other regular employees by seniority in the same classification who meet the following criteria:
    - 1. The employee has completed a request for the increase for assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.
    - 2. The employee has received in the most recent performance evaluation an overall rating of "Average" or "3" or higher.

#### Section II

The following section shall apply to the classifications of Senior Instructional Assistant, Senior Instructional Assistant-Behavior, Senior Instructional Assistant-Medical and Senior Instructional Assistant-Sign Language:

A. Occupied Positions - When an increase in assigned time for a subject position that is currently occupied by a regular employee is approved by a School Administrator or Department supervisor, the additional assigned time shall be offered to the employee currently in the position.

Refusal of Increase in Time

- i. If the regular employee who is offered the increase in assigned time for the subject position refuses the addition of assigned work hours, an interview by the hiring authority shall be offered to other regular employees in the same classification who have requested and are willing and able to work the increase of assigned time of the position who meet the following criteria:
  - 1. The employee is currently located in the same work location as the position.
  - 2. The employee has completed a request for the increase of assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.
  - 3. The employee is currently assigned the same number of hours as the subject position prior to the increase in time.
- ii. If there are no other regular employees in the same classification who are requesting an increase in assigned time from the same work location, regular employees in the same classification from other sites, who are willing and able to work the increase in assigned time, shall be offered an interview for the position who meet the following criteria:
  - 1. The employee has completed a request for the increase in assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.
  - 2. The employee is currently assigned the same number of hours as the subject position prior to the increase in time.
- iii. Upon selection of the employee, the current incumbent of the position with the increased time shall be administratively reassigned to the requesting employee's prior position and assigned work hours.
- B. Vacant Positions When an increase in assigned time for a subject position that is currently vacant is approved by a School Administrator or Department supervisor, the additional assigned time shall be allocated to the employee in the following order.

- i. An interview by the hiring authority shall be offered to other regular employees in the same classification who have requested and are willing and able to work the increase in assigned time of the position in the following order:
  - 1. The requesting employee is currently located in the same work location as the position and the employee has completed a request for the increase in assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.
  - 2. If there are no other regular employees in the same classification who are requesting an increase in assigned time from the same work location, regular employees in the same classification from other sites, who are willing and able to work the increase in assigned time, shall be offered an interview for the position provided that the employee has completed a request for the increase in assigned time on an official District form and submitted it to the Classified Human Resources Office one (1) calendar day prior to selection for the position. The request shall remain effective for one (1) year from the date submitted.

<u>Work Week</u>: The work week for full-time employees shall be forty (40) hours, rendered in units of eight (8) hours, exclusive of a District-designated meal period.

The work week shall consist of five (5) consecutive work days, normally Monday through Friday, for all employees rendering service two (2) hours or more per day during the work week. This does not preclude the extension of the work week or the work day. The District retains the right to extend the regular work day or work week as it deems necessary to carry out the District's business.

<u>Meal Period</u>: Each employee working six (6) or more consecutive hours shall be entitled to an uninterrupted unpaid meal period of not less than one-half hour. Meal periods may be scheduled for not longer than one hour at the discretion of the supervisor. When possible, the meal period shall be scheduled by the supervisor to coincide with normal meal times, or at approximately the midpoint of the employee's shift.

If in the judgment of the supervisor an emergency exists, the employee may be assigned work activities during the regularly scheduled meal period. At the end of the emergency, the employee shall resume his/her meal period for the remaining portion unused at the time the emergency began.

<u>Break Period</u>: Each employee shall receive a fifteen-minute break for each four (4) continuous hours of employment. This break shall be scheduled as close to the mid-shift as possible.

<u>Overtime</u>: Overtime is defined as any time authorized by the immediate supervisor worked, whether suffered or permitted, in excess of eight (8) hours in any one work day or in excess of forty (40) hours in any work week. For the purpose of computing the number of hours worked, time during which an employee is excused from work because of holidays, sick leave, vacation, compensating time off, or other paid leave of absence shall be considered as time worked by the employee. (EC 45128)

<u>Call Back Time</u>: Any employee called in to work at a time when the employee is not scheduled to work shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at the appropriate rate of pay under this Agreement.

<u>Right of Refusal</u>: Any unit employee shall have the right to reject any offer or request for overtime or call-back, on call, or call-in time, except in such emergencies that health and safety are major concerns.

<u>First Aid Training</u>: Required first aid training and CPR training will take place during working hours. Employees who choose to take the training for professional growth hours will be required to take the training outside of working hours and at their own expense. If overtime is required, employees will be paid at one and one-half (1-½) times their regular rate of pay.

<u>Food Services - Temporary Additional Hours</u>: When a regular food service assistant is on a leave (either unpaid or paid) for one or more days, or when a food service assistant vacancy exists and his/her work hours are offered to another employee, whenever possible, food service staff at a site where a vacancy exists will be given the opportunity to pick up additional hours. In long-term vacancies and when staff at the site are at their maximum benefit threshold, staff from other food service sites will be used. Substitutes will only be used to fill lowest-hour positions when permanent employees are absent, or a scheduling conflict exists with staff at the site.

<u>Extra Duty</u>: Extra duty will be first offered to the student's assigned paraprofessional providing Additional Adult Assistance (AAA) support. If the AAA is not available, the site administrator will offer a special education paraprofessional at the site extra duty based on the paraprofessional's familiarity with and ability to support the student's needs.

<u>Compensatory Time Off</u>: In lieu of overtime or extra time pay, a unit member and his/her administrator may mutually agree to authorize compensatory time off. Such compensatory time off shall be granted within twelve (12) months following the month in which the overtime or extra time was worked and without impairing the services rendered by unit members to the District. Compensatory time off which is not taken within the above time limits shall be paid.

# **ARTICLE VIII - SALARIES**

Salary and fringe benefits applicable to members of the bargaining unit are set forth in this article and within the provisions of Appendix A of this agreement.

<u>Working Out of Class</u>: Employees who are required and directed by their immediate supervisor to perform higher level duties inconsistent with their assigned duties shall be compensated at not less than five percent (5%) above the employee's regular rate of pay.

<u>Holiday Compensation</u>: Employees assigned and directed by their immediate supervisor to provide service on a holiday authorized by the District shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half in addition to the regular rate of pay.

<u>Longevity</u>: Beginning with the 10<sup>th</sup> year of service with the Downey Unified School District all employees shall receive an additional \$95 per month. Beginning with the 15<sup>th</sup> year, the amount shall be raised to \$150 per month. Beginning with the 20<sup>th</sup> year, the amount shall be raised to \$200 per month. Beginning with the 25<sup>th</sup> year, the amount shall be raised to \$250 per month. For purposes of this Section, longevity shall be calculated from the initial date of hire, excluding unpaid leaves of absence and breaks in service.

<u>Anniversary Increment</u>: An employee who has performed in a satisfactory manner as described in his/her most recent performance rating shall be entitled to any anniversary salary increments provided for in Appendix A.

Incorrect Salary Placement: Errors in current salary schedule placement shall be corrected only during the fiscal year in which they are discovered, and such corrections shall apply only to that fiscal year.

- A. Underpayments shall be rectified within one pay period following discovery and notice of error.
- B. Overpayments shall be repaid following notification of the employee. A monthly schedule of repayments shall be jointly determined by the employee and the District. Unless a hardship exists, an amount not less than the amount of overpayment collected each previous month prior to the discovery of the error shall be collected from the employee, but in no case shall the total repayment period exceed twelve (12) months.

#### Salary and Fringe Benefits:

- A. <u>Salary</u> The unit's current salary schedule (2022-23) shall reflect a 10.00% salary increase effective July 1, 2022, and a 2.00% salary increase effective July 1, 2023. The District agrees that direct deposit of payroll shall be made available to all bargaining unit members.
- B. <u>Night Shift</u> The Night Shift Differential for all employees working the B Shift is \$.35 per hour. B Shift shall be defined as a shift in which the employee works a majority of his/her day after 3:00 p.m. If any other bargaining unit receives an increase in the shift differential, Unit 1 will receive the same increase.
- C. <u>Fringe Benefits</u> The District and Unit agree to continue to work with the Employee Benefits Committee to contain health benefit costs. The District shall provide employees working twenty (20) hours or more per week [four (4) hours per day] with the following:
  - 1. Pro-rated benefits.
  - 2. Health and welfare insurance plans in accordance with Appendix B.
  - 3. Employees not wishing the medical coverage may elect to receive \$25,000 in life insurance coverage plus dental coverage as set forth in (2) above.
  - 4. All employees working less than four (4) hours shall receive \$5,000 as a death benefit.
  - 5. <u>Health and Welfare</u> The District shall continue funding the health and welfare benefits of all benefit eligible Bargaining Unit Members hired by June 30, 2022, as described in this Article, and shall not require the Bargaining Unit Member to exceed 10% maximum contribution for all plans which include medical, vision and dental. Bargaining unit members hired by June 30, 2022, who did not qualify for benefits and promote to a benefit eligible position, with no separation in service, shall be grandfathered into the 10% maximum contribution for all health and welfare plans which include, medical, vision and dental.

Effective July 1, 2022, the District shall fund the health and welfare benefits of all newly hired benefit eligible Bargaining Unit Members as described in this Article and shall not require the Bargaining Unit Member to exceed a 20% maximum contribution for all plans, which include medical, vision and dental. The District and Unit agree to continue to work cooperatively with the Employee Benefits Committee to contain health benefit costs. The specific benefits of the health and welfare plans shall be maintained unless changed by mutual agreement of the District and the Unit. Current benefit summaries will be posted on the District web page.

- 6. <u>Pretax Earnings</u>: Employee contributions for medical benefits are to be paid with pre-tax earnings as per Section 125 (Flexible Benefits) of the IRS Code.
- C. <u>Service Animal Stipend</u> The Stipend shall be paid to all classified employees that are required to have additional duties that entail taking care of a student and a service animal. These duties shall include all of the usual duties of the position along with assistance to support the service animal for a student. If it is one (1) paraprofessional, then they shall be paid \$100.00 additional per month and if there are multiple assistants then the paraprofessionals must work at least 25% of the time with the animal in order to receive a \$50.00 monthly stipend.

# ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS

#### Approved Days:

Independence DayChristmas DayLabor DayNew Year's DayAdmission Day\*Martin Luther King, Jr. DayVeteran's DayLincoln's DayWednesday before ThanksgivingWashington's DayThanksgiving DayMemorial DayFriday following ThanksgivingJuneteenth

\*Admission Day shall be scheduled in accordance with the annual school calendar

In addition to the paid holidays listed in this provision, the District agrees to provide all employees with paid holidays as mandated by the Education Code, and additional days, if any, as established in the annual school year calendar by authority of the Board of Education.

<u>Holidays Occurring on Weekends</u>: When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding work day shall be deemed be that holiday. When a holiday fails on a Sunday, the following work day shall be deemed to be that holiday.

<u>Special Conference Days</u>: The District will notify affected employees at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of those working days when their services are not required due, but not limited to, scheduled orientation meetings and teacher-parent conferences. Employees so notified may elect to work, take Vacation, Personal Necessity (if qualified), Personal Business, or take unpaid leave of absence on such days.

<u>Holiday Eligibility</u>: An employee must be in a paid status on the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday to be paid for the holiday.

Employees in the bargaining unit who are not normally assigned to duty during school holidays of December 25 and January 1 shall be paid for those holidays provided they were in a paid status during any portion of the working day of their normal assignment immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday period.

# ARTICLE X - RELEASE TIME

<u>Association Business</u>: The Association shall be granted at least twenty-five (25) days each year to be used by any of the officers of C.S.E.A. for Association business and/or the annual conference. The Association shall have the right to send delegates of their choice to the annual conference for a maximum of five (5) days each without loss of compensation each year. The number of delegates shall be determined on the basis of two delegates for the first one hundred fifty (150) members and one delegate for each additional one hundred (100) members or fraction thereof as determined by the roster of dues-paying members.

There will be five (5) additional days per person with a maximum of fifteen (15) days of release time, with substitute coverage provided if one is requested by the supervisor, for C.S.E.A. state officers and/or state appointees. Any release time under this section will require advance notice to the employee's supervisor.

<u>Negotiations and Grievance Processes</u>: The Association will have available a reasonable amount of paid working hours of release time per year to be utilized at the Association's discretion for negotiating with Board representatives or for grievance processing. Release time for negotiating or grievance processing shall not be used in less than four-hour increments.

In January of each year, the elected president of the Association shall provide to the district personnel office and keep current a list of official chapter officers, and job stewards authorized to represent bargaining unit members in grievance and disciplinary matters.

Upon entering a work location, the job steward shall advise the grievant's supervisor and the appropriate administrator of his/her presence and business. The grievant shall be granted permission to leave the job if it will not cause an undue interruption of work. Additionally, the job steward may be permitted to discuss a grievance with all employees immediately concerned during those employees' normal working hours as permitted by the appropriate administrator, and, if appropriate, to attempt to achieve settlement in accordance with grievance procedure.

The job steward shall be required to log the utilization of his/her time as it relates to grievance processing. In investigating and processing grievances the job steward shall be required to utilize the District's Affidavit of Absence form. This form shall be submitted to the immediate supervisor upon return of the job steward from each individual grievance meeting. In reviewing this form with his/her immediate supervisor, the job steward shall be required to account for all time utilized under this provision. The immediate supervisor shall initial the form upon review and keep a copy for his/her office files.

#### Leave of Absence for Unelected Union Member(s)

The District shall grant a leave of absence, without loss of compensation, to a reasonable number of unelected classified employees for the purpose of enabling an employee to attend important organizational activities authorized by the Association in accordance with Education Code Section 45210(b). Any leave of absence granted for unelected Association member(s) will require a notification in writing by the Association to each employee's supervisor or

administrator a minimum of ten (10) work days prior to the start date of the Association's activity. The notification shall state the purpose of the leave and the duration of time that the employee is designated to be on the leave of absence.

Compensation during the leave shall include retirement fund contributions required for the school district as the employer. The employee shall earn full service credit during the leave of absence and the employee shall continue to pay member contributions. The maximum amount of service credit earned shall not exceed twelve (12) years.

The District shall be reimbursed by the Association for the released employee for all compensation paid the employee on account of the leave. Reimbursement by the Association shall be made within ten (10) work days after the Association has received certification of payment of compensation to the employee.

# ARTICLE XI - LEAVES

#### Personal Necessity Leave

A bargaining unit member may elect to use his/her annual accumulative illness or injury leave, not to exceed eight (8) days per school year, except in the case of twelve (12) month employees who may elect to use ten (10) days, for the following purposes:

- A. Death or illness of a member of his/her immediate family.
- B. An accident involving the employee's person or property, or the person or property of a member of the employee's immediate family as defined in Section (a) of this Article.
- C. An appearance of the employee in court as a litigant or witness under an official order. The employee is expected to return to work in cases where he/she is not required to be absent the entire day.
- D. Birth or adoption of an employee's child.
- E. Imminent danger to the home of the employee.
- F. Religious holidays.
- G. Activities required by virtue of holding a public elected office.
- H. In cases of personal necessity where the employee cannot reasonably be expected to disregard the situation, or where the necessity cannot be transacted outside of the employee's assigned working hours, except that such leave may not be used for:
  - (a) routine personal business
  - (b) vacation, recreation, or social activities
  - (c) employee organization activities
  - (d) political activities or demonstrations
  - (e) work stoppage and other concerted activities

An employee using personal necessity leave shall submit his/her absence verification form certifying in writing the reason that the employee is using personal necessity leave for a purpose provided in Article XI, Sections A-H. An employee shall give his/her immediate supervisor advance notice of personal necessity leave whenever reasonably possible.

If in cases of suspected abuse, management reserves the right to request the employee to provide verification that the absence was due to a necessity as defined in Article XI, Sections A-H.

In situations where absence is due to subpoena or an official order, the employee must provide evidence from a certified clerk or authorized officer of a court or other governmental jurisdiction. For such leaves the employee shall be granted leave of absence with pay up to the amount of the difference between the employee's regular earnings and any amount he/she received for jury or witness fees.

#### Personal Business Leave

Employees shall be eligible to use up to three (3) days of unrestricted personal business leave per school year to be deducted from any available sick leave days accrued. Employees shall be required to give the District twenty-four (24) hours advance notice to use such personal business leave.

#### Vacation

Every regular classified employee shall earn vacation at the prescribed rate as part of his/her compensation.

Vacation shall be earned at the rate of one (1) working day for each full month of employment or portion thereof. Major portion of the month, as used herein, is defined as in excess of eleven (11) working days in the month.

All regular classified employees who work on a part-time basis in a ten (10), eleven (11), or twelve (12) month assignment shall accrue paid vacation in line with those policies and receive such vacation credit commensurate with the designated hours worked per day.

Additional paid vacation for longevity shall be granted on the following schedule:

Years of	12-Month	11-Month	10-Month	Additional Days		
Service	Employee	Employee	Employee	Per Year		
6	1/12 dpm*	1/11 dpm*	1/10 dpm*	1		
7	1/6 dpm*	2/11 dpm*	1/5 dpm*	2		
8	1/4 dpm*	3/11 dpm*	3/10 dpm*	3		
9	1/3 dpm*	4/11 dpm*	2/5 dpm*	4		
10	5/12 dpm*	5/11 dpm*	1/2 dpm*	5		
11	1/2 dpm*	6/11 dpm*	3/5 dpm*	6		
12	7/12 dpm*	7/11 dpm*	7/10 dpm*	7		
13	2/3 dpm*	8/11 dpm*	4/5 dpm*	8		
* Dave net menth						

\* Days per month

It is understood that there will be some exceptions to this rule due to District necessity and/or an individual employee's circumstances. Vacation accumulation shall be limited to a maximum of forty (40) days at any time. Excess vacation days over forty (40) must be scheduled to be taken by the first pay period following the accumulation of over forty (40) days. Should the employee fail to schedule excess of vacation by the end of the first pay period after the excess accumulation, the supervisor and employee shall collaboratively schedule the date(s) of vacation in the amount of days over forty (40) and the employee will be required to utilize the vacation on the dates scheduled for him/her.

<u>Required Vacation Periods</u>: Employees required to provide services directly to students on instructional days shall take vacation during the Thanksgiving, Winter and Spring school recesses. Exceptions can be made on a case-by-case basis.

Vacation leave shall be scheduled by the employee, subject to approval by the department head, principal, or administrator. Vacation leave and requests for such leave shall not be unreasonably denied by a department head, principal, or administrator, provided that the granting of vacation leave shall not create a burden for the District in terms of the performance of its mission.

If the vacation leave is denied, the department head, principal, or administrator shall supply the reasons for said denial in writing to the employee within a reasonable time period. If the employee or C.S.E.A. deems that the denial of vacation leave was unreasonable, the employee or C.S.E.A. may appeal the decision to the administrator above the supervisor.

The salary at which vacation is paid shall be the employee's current salary rate. An employee whose vacation is earned and begun under a given status shall suffer no loss of earned vacation salary by reason of subsequent changes in conditions of employment. Upon separation from the service, a permanent employee shall be paid for his/her accumulated vacation credit at the rate of pay applicable to his/her last regular assignment. No pay for accumulated vacation shall be paid to employees whose employment is terminated prior to completion of the probationary period.

An employee who has completed his/her probationary period may be granted vacation during the year even though not earned at the time the vacation is taken.

If an employee is terminated and had been granted vacation which was not earned at the time of termination, the District shall deduct from the employee's severance pay the full amount of salary that was paid for such unearned days of vacation taken.

A regular classified employee may revert to leave of absence for illness or injury if the employee suffers an incapacitating personal illness or injury while on authorized paid vacation. Such request shall be verified in writing by the attending physician and accompany the request for change in status.

#### Paid Sick Leave

Sick leave is the authorized absence of an employee because of illness or injury or exposure to contagious disease. In addition, an employee may use six (6) days of the employee's annual entitlement, to be deducted from any available sick leave days accrued, to attend to the illness or injury of a child, parent, or spouse.

A regular classified employee (probationary and permanent) shall earn paid sick leave in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Section 45191. Unused sick leave may be accumulated without limit.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the sick leave "bank" of the employee shall be increased by the number of days of paid sick leave which he/she would normally earn in the ensuing fiscal year. An employee's sick leave "bank" shall be adjusted if a change of assignment alters the amount of sick leave earnable. Sick leave may be taken at any time, provided that employees with probationary status may use only six (6) days of paid sick leave during their initial probationary period.

Pay for any day of sick leave shall be the same pay the employee would have received if he/she had worked that day.

In order to receive compensation while absent on sick leave, the employee must notify his/her supervisor of his/her absence prior to the first working hour of the first day absent, unless conditions make notification impossible. The burden of proof of impossible conditions shall be upon the employee.

At least one (1) day prior to his/her expected return to work, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor in order that any substitute employee may be terminated. If the employee fails to notify his/her supervisor and both the employee and the substitute report, the substitute is entitled to the assignment, and the employee shall be allowed to use one (1) earned vacation day or not receive pay for that day.

An employee absent for five (5) working days or more shall present a doctor's statement excusing the employee from work and the date the employee is able to return to work. The employee shall provide a doctor's statement at any time with proper notification. Habitual absenteeism shall be the basis for disciplinary action.

Any classified employee of any California school district who has been an employee of that district for one year or more and terminates such employment for the sole purpose of accepting a position in Downey Unified School District, and subsequently accepts such position within thirty (30) days of termination of his/her former employment, shall have transferred with him/her to Downey Unified School District the accumulated unused earned leave of absence for illness or injury, if properly established, to which he/she is entitled under Education Code Section 45191.

#### Additional Sick Leave

After exhaustion of paid sick leave, a twelve (12) month employee who is ill or injured must use accumulated vacation and compensatory time to avoid leave without pay.

After exhaustion of paid sick leave, a permanent employee may be placed on additional leave upon request and with the approval of the Board of Education. The additional leave may be paid or unpaid and may be extended for any period not to exceed eighteen (18) months. If placed on unpaid leave, the employee shall not again become eligible for paid leave because of the commencement of a new fiscal year until employee has rendered service.

In addition to current and accumulated sick leave, all unit members shall be entitled to not more than one hundred (100) days of sick leave at fifty percent (50%) of the employee's regular salary, upon appropriate medical verification of illness or injury. After exhaustion of paid sick leave and prior to using the one hundred (100) days at fifty percent (50%), an employee who is ill or injured will use accumulated compensatory and vacation time to avoid leave without pay. Ten and eleven month employees may bank/save enough vacation days to cover current year winter and spring breaks.

Family Medical Leave Act requests shall be available for a maximum of twelve (12) weeks in a one-year period for: Birth and care of the newborn child of the employee; placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care; care of biological, adopted, foster, stepchild, legal ward, or adult dependent child with serious health condition; care of biological, adoptive, or foster parent or spouse with a serious health condition; employee's own disability due to serious health condition.

Employees are required to give thirty-day (30) advance notice of the need to take this leave when the need is known in advance. When the need for leave is unforeseen, the employee must provide as much notice as is practicable. A form to request such leave is available in the Classified Human Resources Office.

To qualify, an employee must have rendered one (1) year of continuous services and have worked a minimum of 1,250 hours in the twelve months immediately preceding the requested leave.

This leave will run concurrently with leave benefits to which the employee is otherwise entitled upon approval, except in the case of pregnancy-related disability. In this case, the employee may use her leave privileges already in place, and then may apply for an additional twelve (12) weeks of unpaid family care leave under the provisions of the California Family Rights Act.

When intermittent leave is needed due to medical treatments of the employee or employee's child, spouse, or parent, and the need is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment, the employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment to avoid undue disruption to the District's operations.

#### Termination of Sick Leave

An employee who has been placed on paid or unpaid sick leave may return to duty at any time during the leave, provided that he/she is able to resume the assigned duties and if the leave has been for more than twenty (20) working days, provided that he/she has notified the District of his/her return at least three (3) working days in advance.

If at the conclusion of all sick leave and additional leave, paid or unpaid granted under these rules, the employee is still unable to assume the duties of his/her position, he/she will be placed on a reemployment list a period of thirty-nine (39) months in the same manner as if he/she were laid off for lack of work or lack of funds.

#### Sick Leave Bank

<u>Purpose</u>: To assist all regular permanent classified employees that earn sick leave from the school district, but who have suffered a non-industrial injury or illness of a disabling nature, the absence from which has caused them to have exhausted all available paid leave, except that they may be used in conjunction with fifty percent (50%) paid days. The intent is to allow classified employees time to be restored to health and return to work.

<u>Donations</u>: Once a year, or more often if needed, donations will be requested to be made to the bank. Donations may be made to benefit specific individuals at any time of the year, whether or not through formal solicitation. Days donated to the bank are NOT REFUNDABLE, whether made for a general solicitation or for a specific individual.

Donors must maintain seventy percent (70%) of their accrued sick leave, but no less than ten (10) days in their own sick leave accounts. Donations must be a minimum of one (1) day. Donations to the bank are irrevocable. Donations made to the bank which are received in Classified Payroll by 4:00 p.m. on the 20<sup>th</sup> and approved by the Sick Leave Bank Committee will be posted for use during the month received. Approved donations received after the 20<sup>th</sup> will be posted for use during the following month.

<u>Requests to the Bank</u>: Employee, or employee's representative, may make a request for days from the sick leave bank on the "Request for Days from Classified Employee's Sick Leave Bank" form. It shall be submitted in a sealed envelope to: ATTN: Sick Leave Bank Committee,

c/o Director, Classified Human Resources, Classified Human Resources Office, Downey USD, P.O. Box 7017, Downey, CA 90241-7017.

A Doctor's note verifying the extended absence must be attached to the request to the sick leave bank. The District may require an additional exam by a doctor specified by the District, paid for by the District.

Requestor must have exhausted all paid leaves, with the exception of fifty percent (50%) paid days. The Sick Leave Bank Committee will review the employee's request along with the submitted medical information, will make a determination, and will notify the requesting employee as quickly as possible as to the committee's decision. No assurance is implied.

The maximum days allowed will be fifty (50) days, or if fewer than fifty (50) days remain in the sick leave bank, fifty percent (50%) of the total days in the bank, at the discretion of the Sick Leave Bank Committee. Granting of days is subject to availability.

Days from the Sick Leave Bank may be used prior to, or after exhaustion of fifty percent (50%) paid days. They may also be used in conjunction with fifty percent (50%) paid days to constitute up to seventy-five percent (75%) of a full-day's pay. Specification must be made at the time of the request how the requested days will be used.

Days donated specifically for an individual will be used prior to general donations in sick leave bank, if any.

If the employee returns to work and has a reoccurrence of the same or related illness or injury during the initial twelve-month period, the employee may use the remaining donated days. After one year, the employee may request from the Sick Leave Bank committee an extension for any remaining days, up to one additional year. Donated days may be used only for the specified illness or injury. Unless an extension has been requested and approved, any remaining unused days will revert to the Sick Leave Bank after twelve months from the date advanced to the employee. The employee may reapply for additional days after one year from the date Sick Leave Bank days are initially donated.

Exclusions: Not covered are cosmetic surgery, normal pregnancy, and worker's compensation and related illness/injury leaves.

#### Industrial Accident and Industrial Illness Leave

Leaves resulting from an industrial accident or illness shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Section 44043 and 45192 and Personnel Commission rule #60.500.5.

An employee in the classified service who is absent from duty because of an illness or injury occurring on or after the effective date of this agreement, defined as an industrial accident or illness under provisions of the Workers' Compensation law, shall be granted industrial accident leave for each such accident or illness while receiving temporary disability benefits from Workers' Compensation. Temporary disability benefits shall consist of two thirds (2/3) of the employee's base pay rate and are not taxable.

In addition, if the employee has served continuously with the district for a period of two (2) years or more, the employee shall receive from the first day of absence to and including the last day of absence resulting from each separate industrial illness or injury, a paid industrial accident leave for not more than sixty (60) working days. The requirement that employees have served

continuously with the district for a period of two (2) years or more will be applied to individuals employed after the effective date of this agreement.

Paid industrial accident/illness leave shall be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized absence regardless of the temporary disability allowance made under Worker's Compensation. Days absent while on paid industrial accident/illness leave shall not be deducted from the number of days of paid illness leave if he/she is eligible therefor. Accumulated illness leave will be reduced only in the amount necessary to provide a full day's wages or salary, as indicated in the employee's assignment, when added to compensation without penalties from the Workers' Compensation Fund.

After all paid illness leave has been exhausted following a paid industrial accident/illness leave, an employee may choose to receive pay from accrued vacation, earned compensatory time, or other earned leave to the extent necessary to make up the employee's regular salary when receiving a temporary disability allowance without penalties from the Workers' Compensation Fund.

After the expiration of all paid leave privileges, the Board of Education may place the employee on an industrial accident/illness leave without pay. The total time of all leave benefits provided under this rule, including unpaid industrial accident/illness leave, shall not exceed thirty-six (36) months for any one (1) industrial accident or illness.

Upon return to service from paid or unpaid leave resulting from an industrial accident or illness, an employee shall be assigned to a position in his/her former class ahead of any employee with a lesser amount of seniority. If no vacancy exists in his/her former class, he/she may displace the most recently appointed employee in the class with less seniority. If an employee's former class has ceased to exist, the employee may be reassigned or placed on a suitable reemployment list.

An employee returning from such paid or unpaid leave of absence shall not have any loss or gain in status or benefit other than that which is specifically provided in applicable provisions of the Education Code and Personnel Commission rules. An employee shall continue to receive seniority credit for all purposes while on such a paid or unpaid leave of absence.

When all paid or unpaid leaves of absence have been exhausted following an industrial accident or illness, the employee's name shall be placed on the reemployment list for the class from which he/she was on leave for a period not to exceed thirty-nine (39) months.

An employee who fails to accept an appropriate assignment after being medically approved therefor shall be removed from the reemployment list. Appropriate assignment is defined as an assignment to the employee's former class, in his/her former status and time basis.

While an employee is on any paid leave resulting from an industrial accident or illness, the employee's salary paid by the District shall not, when added to normal temporary disability allowance award without penalties granted the employee under Workers' Compensation laws, exceed the employee's regular salary. A permanent employee's regular salary is computed on the basis of the number of hours and days in his/her basic daily assignment. An employee who is not permanent shall have his/her regular salary computed on the basis of the average number of hours worked each month in which the employee was in paid status during the preceding six (6) months.

During all paid leaves resulting from an industrial accident or illness, the employee shall endorse to the District all wage-loss benefit checks received under Workers' Compensation laws. The District shall issue to the employee appropriate warrants for payment of wages, loss of benefits, salary, and/or leave benefits and shall deduct normal retirement and other authorized contributions.

Final allowance for permanent industrial disability settlements shall not be subject to remittance to the District under this rule. When returning from a leave of absence for industrial accident or illness, the employee will be required to obtain a health clearance for normal duties from his/her attending physician or surgeon. The District may require the employee to undergo an exam paid for by the District by a physician selected by the District for the purpose of verifying that the employee is fit for duty. Should the two physicians disagree, a third physician will examine the employee at the District's expense, whose decision will be final and binding.

#### Bereavement Leave

Probationary and permanent employees in the classified service shall be allowed regular pay for not more than three (3) working days, not to exceed 8 hours per day, when absent due to the death of any member of his/her immediate family. Bereavement leave with pay shall be extended to a maximum of five (5) days when travel beyond a two-hundred (200) mile radius and/or out of state is necessary in connection with the bereavement. Bereavement leave under this section shall not be charged against the employee's accumulated illness leave.

If in cases of suspected abuse, management reserves the right to request the employee to provide verification that the absence was due to a death of any member of his/her immediate family.

#### Jury Duty and Witness Leave

Leave of absence for jury service shall be granted to any classified employees who have been officially summoned to jury duty in local, state, or Federal Court. Leave shall be granted for the period of the jury service. The employee shall receive full pay while on leave provided that the jury service fee for such leave is assigned to and the subpoena or court certification is filed with the District. Request for jury service leave should be made by presenting the official court summons to jury service to the Director, Classified Human Resources. Not more than two percent (2%) of the classified service shall be granted jury duty leave at any one time.

Leave of absence to serve as a witness in a court case shall be granted an employee when he/she has been served a subpoena to appear as a witness, not as the litigant in the case. The length of the leave granted shall be for the number of days in attendance in court as certified by the clerk or other authorized officer of the court. The employee shall receive full pay during the leave period, provided that the witness fee for such leave is assigned to and the subpoena or court certification is filed with the School District. Request for leave of absence to serve as a witness should be made by presenting the official court summons to the Director, Classified Human Resources. The jury service fee and witness fee referred to in the above do not include reimbursement for transportation expenses.

An employee who has received leave of absence under this rule shall make himself/herself available for work during his/her regular work hours when his/her presence is not required in court.

#### Absence for Examination

Every employee in the classified service shall be permitted to be absent from his/her duties during working hours in order to take any examination for promotion in the District without deduction of pay or other penalty, provided that he/she gives two (2) days' notice to his/her immediate supervisor.

#### Leave for Voting

Consideration of time off for purposes of voting shall be determined by the provisions of the State Election Law as follows:

#### State of California Elections Code Section 14000:

"(a) If a voter does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote at a statewide election, the voter may, without loss of pay, take off enough working time that, when added to the voting time available outside of working hours, will enable the voter to vote.

(b) No more than two hours of the time taken off for voting shall be without loss of pay. The time off for voting shall be only at the beginning or end of the regular working shift, whichever allows the most free time for voting and the least time off from the regular working shift, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

(c) If the employee on the third working day prior to the day of election, knows or has reason to believe that time off will be necessary to be able to vote on election day, the employee shall give the employer at least two working days' notice that time off for voting is desired, in accordance with this section."

#### Pregnancy Disability Leave

The District shall provide a pregnancy disability leave to any employee who is absent from work on account of pregnancy disability. Such leave shall be paid to the same extent as for any other disability. The employee shall inform the District of her due date no less than four (4) months before such due date. The starting and ending dates of the pregnancy disability leave shall be the dates on which the employee's medical disability begins and ends, as determined by the employee's physician. The District may require medical verification of pregnancy disability and/or release to return to work. If the employee's physician and the District's physician disagree, the employee and the District shall request the physicians to select a third physician who shall decide the issue.

#### Leave of Absence Without Pay

Leave of absence without pay may be granted to a permanent classified employee, upon the written request of the employee and the approval of the Board of Education, subject to the following restrictions:

- A. Leave of absence without pay may be granted if not to exceed six (6) months. The Board may renew the leave of absence for two (2) additional six (6) month periods or such lesser leave periods that it may provide but not to exceed a total of eighteen (18) months, except that the leave of absence for military service shall he granted as provided by the Education Code and the Military and Veterans Code, and leave of absence for service in the Peace corps and Vista may be granted for a period not to exceed twenty-four (24) months.
- B. The granting of a leave of absence without pay gives to the employee the right to return to a similar position within the same classification as determined by the District at the expiration of his/her leave of absence, provided that he/she is physically and legally capable of performing the duties.

- C. If time is requested away from a position for a period of less than two (2) weeks, the employee need not apply for a leave of absence. He/she should make arrangements with his/her department supervisor and obtain prior approval.
- D. The District may offer less demanding work or reduced hours, when same is available, to an employee who has become medically unable, in the opinion of the employee's physician, to perform his/her regular job. The employee's physician shall verify in writing that the employee is medically able to do less demanding work or work reduced hours.
- E. <u>Parenting Leave</u>: An employee who has successfully completed the probationary period of employment may be eligible for a parenting leave. The District may grant a leave of absence without pay for parenting purposes for up to one (1) year in duration. The District may condition the scheduling of this leave to minimize substantiated disruption of the educational program.
- F. If a permanent employee secures employment from another employer while on leave, the leave is automatically cancelled, and the employee is considered to have resigned his/her position with the District.

#### Health Leave

A request may be made for a leave of absence for reasons of recuperation from illness or injury provided the employee has permanent status with the District.

The request should pertain to that amount of time required to be absent from the position beyond the sick leave earned and vacation time accrued.

A "CHANGE IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS" form must be submitted by the employee to his/her department supervisor for approval after which the request is forwarded to the Classified Human Resources office for processing.

Written evidence of illness must be obtained from the attending physician or surgeon and submitted together with the request. When returning from a leave of absence for health reasons, the employee will be required to submit a health clearance for normal duties from his/her attending physician or surgeon at least three (3) working days prior to returning to duty. If there is concern that the employee may not be fit for duty, the employee may be required to undergo an exam by a physician selected by the District at the District's expense. Should the two physicians disagree, a third physician will examine the employee at the District's expense, whose decision will be final and binding.

#### Military Leave

The Board of Education will grant a leave of absence to permanent and probationary employees for the duration of active military service as defined in Military Code Section 395.1, U.S. Department of Labor, and Education Code Section 44800. Such absence shall not affect in any way the classification of the employee. In the case of a probationary employee, the period of such absence shall not count as a part of the service required for permanence; however, the absence shall not be construed as a break in continuity of the service of said employee for any purpose.

Unpaid military leave for reserve training during the school year may be approved upon written request of the commanding officer to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, indicating the necessity for such training at the specified time.

Within six (6) months after being honorably discharged from active duty, the employee shall have the right to the position he/she formerly held provided the active military service does not extend beyond the national emergency. The rate of pay upon reemployment shall be the current salary for that position.

The time spent in military service may count toward retirement under PERS. The Board of Education will make District payment to the retirement system for those who make their contribution to the system either during or immediately following the period of military service, if permitted by law.

#### Child Bonding Leave

As per AB 2393, classified employees may receive baby bonding leave. The employee must have worked for the district for one year and exhaust all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, before receiving 50% pay for the 12-work week period. The leave is for the birth of a child of the employee or placement of a child with an employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child of the employee. Employees may only receive one child bonding leave within a 12-month period. This leave must be used within one year of the birth or placement of the child. This leave runs concurrent with CFRA. This leave is a separate entitlement from the 100 days of differential pay. Documentation of the birth/placement will be required for all employees.

# ARTICLE XII - TRANSFER

#### **Definition**

A transfer is defined as a change of job site (and a change of supervisor) but within the same position classification.

#### Criteria for Transfer

The following criteria shall be considered in evaluating a transfer request:

- 1. The needs, goals, and efficient operation of the District.
- 2. Any employee in the same classification who has passed the six (6) month probation.
- 3. When considering these criteria, the District shall not be arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory.
- 4. No vacant position shall be filled until all transfer requests are referred for interview in order to allow current employees an opportunity to move before going to an outside list.

#### Employee Initiated Transfer Requests

A permanent employee covered by this Agreement shall have the right of requesting a transfer to any job location within the same position classification, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The employee must submit a request for transfer on the appropriate District form. Properly filed transfer requests shall be given administrative consideration and shall be valid for one (1) year from date submitted to the Classified Human Resources Office.
- 2. The employee's immediate supervisor will be notified of the transfer request at the time of referral for interview.
- 3. The filing of a request for transfer is without prejudice to the employee and shall not jeopardize the present assignment. A request for transfer may be withdrawn by the employee in writing at any time within the year in which it is valid.

#### **Employer Initiated Transfers**

#### Involuntary Transfer

A transfer may be made by the District at any time for any of the following reasons:

- 1. In order to balance the classified staff of the District.
- 2. A change of enrollment or workload necessitating transfer of classified staff.
- 3. Improved efficiency of the District.

The employee will be notified by his/her immediate supervisor at least five (5) working days, in writing, prior to the effective date of the proposed transfer. If the employee or C.S.E.A. deems that the involuntary transfer was unreasonable, the employee or C.S.E.A. may appeal the decision to the administrator above the supervisor. If the administrator finds the reasons to be unreasonable or incorrect, the transfer shall be reversed and considered invalid.

Any unit member who will be required to change their work location, as a result of moving from one education program to another program, shall be notified by his/her immediate supervisor or Director of Classified HR or designee at least five (5) working days prior to the transfer being initiated.

Any unit member who will be required to transfer as a result of disciplinary action will be notified by his/her immediate supervisor or Director of Classified HR or designee at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the transfer being initiated.

# ARTICLE XIII - SAFETY/UNIFORMS

<u>District Compliance</u>: It shall be the intent of the District to comply with the standards of the Division of Industrial Safety of the State of California and those requirements imposed by State or Federal law.

The District shall be responsible for providing safe working conditions for unit members and for prescribing appropriate safety standards. The District shall meet the safety and health standards mandated by the California Occupational Safety and Health Act. Unit members shall be responsible for complying with District safety standards, including accident and incident reports, and for practicing basic safety measures. Unit members shall report to their immediate administrator and/or principal, in writing, suspected unsafe conditions. The District shall investigate all reports of suspected unsafe conditions, and shall take necessary steps to correct conditions identified as being unsafe.

Should an emergency arise, the District emergency plan will be executed. When all of the emergency tasks have been completed, and the needs of the students have been satisfied, employees may be dismissed by the responsible administrator.

All written reports submitted to the District shall be responded to within ten days. The intent of this section is to provide timely resolution of a safety disagreement.

A unit member may refuse to do work as long as it is made clear that he/she believes the health or safety of themselves, or others would be in clear and present danger if he/she did the work. The unit member is also obligated to inform the supervisor that he/she is willing to perform other duties as assigned until the job is safe.

Under no circumstances shall repercussions be taken against any employee reporting unsafe conditions.

<u>Uniforms</u>: For the classification(s) listed below, the employees shall wear the full uniform provided at all times. The upkeep of the uniforms shall be borne by the employee. The cost of purposely damaged or lost uniforms shall be paid by the employee. The District will provide uniforms, as needed, for the following classification:

#### Campus Security Assistant

The cost of the shirts and jacket required by the District shall be borne by the District.

#### Reimbursement for Damage of Personal Property:

The Board of Education will reimburse unit members, in an amount not to exceed a total \$250 in any school year, for loss or damage or destruction while on duty in the school, of personal property of a kind normally worn or brought into school when the employee has not been negligent, to the extent that such loss is not covered by insurance. The term "personal property" shall not include cash. The term "loss," "damage," and "destruction" shall not cover the effects of normal wear and tear and use.

### ARTICLE XIV - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND EVALUATION

The District and the Association agree not to discriminate against any employee covered by this agreement because of his/her political activities, political beliefs, District approved Association activities, or Association Membership, or because of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, marital status, veterans' status, and to the extent prohibited by law, no employee shall be discriminated against because of age, sex, or physical handicap. No employee shall be coerced, intimidated or otherwise discriminated against for the exercise of rights guaranteed by Federal or State laws, the rules and regulations of the Public Employment Relations Board, or the provisions of this agreement.

**General Provisions of Evaluation** 

- A. The evaluation process is for the purpose of assessing the competency of classified personnel performance which contributes toward the improvement and growth of employees of the bargaining unit.
- B. Permanent employees shall be evaluated in respect to their total work assignment every other year.
- C. Only matters that have been brought to the attention of the employee prior to the formal evaluation shall be included in the evaluation report.
- D. No employee shall be formally evaluated following his/her termination from the District.

#### Procedures for Evaluation

- A. No bargaining unit member shall be involved in the evaluation process of another bargaining unit member or be required to provide any administrator with information relative to another bargaining unit member's performance.
- B. Regular probationary employees shall receive at least two (2) formal written performance ratings on District-approved forms during the probationary period. Normally

these ratings shall be completed at the end of the third and beginning of the fifth months of service.

- C. Regular permanent employees shall receive at least one (1) formal written performance rating on District-approved forms every other year. Normally these ratings shall be completed by the end of each employee anniversary date. A permanent employee may receive a special evaluation by his/her immediate supervisor at any time if exemplary or unsatisfactory service is performed.
- D. The rating forms described herein shall be completed and signed by the employee's immediate supervisor and may be reviewed and signed by the administrator to whom the immediate supervisor is responsible.
- E. The rating form shall contain an appraisal of the employee's performance and appropriate commendations or specific suggestions for improvement of the employee's performance.
- F. The employee shall acknowledge that he/she has read such material by affixing his/her manual signature on the rating form with the understanding that such signature merely signifies that he/she has read the rating but does not necessarily indicate agreement with the contents. The employee shall receive a copy of the evaluation upon signing. The employee may attach a written response to the performance evaluation. Such written response by the employee shall be transmitted through the administrator to whom the immediate supervisor is responsible prior to placement in the employee's personnel file.
- G. The procedures of evaluation are subject to the grievance article in this Agreement. Subjective evaluation findings are not a grievable matter.

#### Personnel Files

- A. The Classified Human Resources Office shall maintain a permanent personnel file on each employee of bargaining unit.
- B. Disciplinary action may be taken against an employee only when the employee has been notified of the unsatisfactory performance or the employee commits an act by law that requires formal discipline. Such notification must be followed with written documentation for inclusion in the employee's personnel file.
- C. Each employee shall have the right to inspect his/her personnel file and obtain copies upon advance notification to the Classified Human Resources Office. Release time for the purpose of inspecting said file shall be scheduled by the immediate supervisor. The loss resulting from this release time shall be made up if in excess of thirty (30) minutes. Exceptions of material that may be inspected include: ratings, reports, or records which were obtained prior to the employment of the employee involved.
- D. Written material placed in an employee's personnel file shall be signed and dated. Derogatory or adverse material in an employee's file may not be used in a disciplinary proceeding against the employee if it concerns matters more than two years old or unless the material is required to be retained by current law.

- E. An employee shall have the right to file a written response to any derogatory or adverse material filed in his/her personnel file. The written response shall be attached to the material or incident report.
- F. Prior to utilizing materials or incidents in the evaluation process, the evaluator shall make a reasonable effort to verify the accuracy of the material or incident.

# **ARTICLE XV - RESTRICTION ON CONTRACTING OUT**

The District agrees that it will not contract out work which is customarily and routinely performed by employees in the bargaining unit. The District will not contract out work contrary to law.

# ARTICLE XVI - COMPLAINT PROCEDURE RELATING TO RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES

The Board of Education and the Personnel Commission shall for the term of this Agreement provide, by rule and/or regulation cited under BP 5233 and RR 80.100, a process for reviewing employee complaints where the employee was adversely affected due to an alleged violation of Board Policies and Administrative Regulations and/or Personnel Commission Rules and Regulations. Application of this complaint procedure shall be limited to those policies, rules and regulations which have directly affected the employee's employment.

# ARTICLE XVII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### **Definition**

A claim by C.S.E.A., an individual, or a group of the bargaining unit that there has been or exists a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the provisions of the contract that adversely affects his/her/their employment.

#### <u>Intent</u>

It is the intent of both parties to resolve grievances at the lowest possible level and to encourage as informal and confidential an atmosphere as is possible in the resolution of grievances. C.S.E.A. has the right to file a grievance on behalf of the employee(s).

#### Procedural Steps

<u>Step One (Informal Level)</u>: Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant shall attempt to resolve it with an informal conference with his/her immediate supervisor. The grievance shall be presented orally and/or in writing to the grievant's immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) working days after the event occurred or within fifteen (15) working days of the time the grievant knew or could have reasonably known of the event giving rise to the grievance. The employee has the option to have a C.S.E.A. representative at the step one meeting or this step may be considered optional. The immediate supervisor shall give his/her oral and/or written response to the employee within seven (7) working days after the grievance has been discussed, or unless both parties mutually agree to an extension.

<u>Formal Level Step Two</u>: If the grievance is not resolved at the informal level, the grievant may, within seven (7) working days after the date of response from the immediate supervisor, request a formal review by submitting the grievance in writing to said supervisor. Written response shall be submitted to the aggrieved party and the job representative, if any, within seven (7) working

days from submission of the written grievance.

Commencing at Step Two of this procedure, the grievant may elect to represent himself/herself or have a job representative from the local chapter or a field representative from the State Association or any person of his/her choosing present at all subsequent conferences held for purposes of bringing resolution to the grievance. If the supervisor fails to respond within the prescribed time limits, the grievant may appeal to level three. If the grievant elects to represent himself/herself at this step or at any later step, C.S.E.A. shall be relieved of any further obligation of representation.

#### Formal Level Step Three

If the grievance is not resolved at level two, the grievant may appeal in writing to the next level of supervision within seven (7) working days following the response from the immediate supervisor. Within seven (7) working days after receipt of the written appeal, the next level of supervision shall meet with the grievant and representative, if any, to discuss and seek resolution to the grievance. The grievant and the job representative shall be notified in writing of the response within seven (7) working days after the meeting. If the supervisor fails to respond, the grievant may appeal to level four.

<u>Formal Level Step Four</u>: If the grievance is not resolved at level three, the grievant may appeal in writing to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee will meet within seven (7) working days with the grievant and job representative, if any, in an attempt to resolve the grievance following receipt of the written appeal. Within seven (7) working days following the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall deliver to the grievant and the job representative a written response. If the Superintendent fails to respond, the grievant may appeal to level five.

<u>Formal Level Step Five</u>: If the grievance is not resolved at level four, the grievant may submit the grievance in writing to the Board of Education within seven (7) working days following receipt of the response from the Superintendent or designee. The Governing Board will schedule, in closed session, a hearing on the grievance at its next regular meeting. At that meeting the grievant and the job representative, if any, or any person of the employee's choosing, if any, shall present an argument in writing attaching whatever evidence the grievant wishes to submit. The District may respond in writing. By no later than the next regular meeting, the Governing Board will deliver to the grievant and the job representative or his/her designee, if any, its written response to the grievance, which decision shall be final and binding on both parties.

# ARTICLE XVIII - NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION (AB119)/(SB191)

- 1. DISTRICT NOTICE TO CSEA OF NEW HIRES
  - a) <u>Provide CSEA With Notice of New Hires:</u> The District shall provide the CSEA Labor Relations Representative notice of any newly hired employee, within ten (10) days of date of hire, via electronic mail. The notice shall include full legal name, date of hire, classification, and site.
  - b) <u>Definition of a Newly Hired Employee:</u> "Newly hired employee" or "new hire" means any employee, whether permanent, full time, part time, hired by the District, and who is still employed as of the date of the new employee orientation. It also includes all employees who are or have been previously employed by the District and whose current position has placed them in the bargaining unit represented by CSEA. For those latter employees, for purposes of this agreement only, the "date of hire" is the date upon which the employee's employee status changed such that the employee was placed in the CSEA unit.

#### 2. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

a) Provide CSEA With New Hire Contact Information: Except for employees who have submitted written requests pursuant to Government Code section 6254.3(c) prohibiting the disclosure of their home address, home telephone number, personal cellular telephone number, personal email address, or birth date, the District shall provide CSEA with contact information on the new hires. The District shall not solicit employees to opt out.

The information shall be provided electronically via a mutually agreeable secure FTP format and shall include the following items, with each field in its own column:

- i. First Name;
- ii. Middle initial;
- iii. Last name;
- iv. Suffix (e.g. Jr., III);
- v. Job Title;
- vi. Department;
- vii. Primary worksite name;
- viii. Work telephone number;
- ix. Work Extension;
- x. Home Street address (incl. apartment #);
- xi. City;
- xii. State;
- xiii. ZIP Code (5 or 9 digits);
- xiv. Home telephone number (10 digits);
- xv. Personal cellular telephone number (10 digits);
- xvi. Personal email address of the employee;
- xvii. Employee ID;
- xviii. Hire date;
- xix. CalPERS status

- b) <u>Provide CSEA With Periodic Update of Unit Member Contact Information:</u> The District shall provide CSEA, via a mutually agreeable secure FTP site or service, all bargaining unit member names and contact information on the last working day of September, January, and May. The specific employee information required to be submitted, shall include all the information described above in section 2(a) of this agreement.
- c) On the last workday of each month, the District shall provide to a CSEA, via a mutually agreeable secure FTP site or service, the name and contact information on the new hires. This information shall be provided to CSEA regardless of whether the newly hired employee was previously employed by the District.

#### 3. NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

- a) <u>Definition of New Employee Orientation</u>: "New employee orientation" means the onboarding process of a newly hired public employee, whether in person, online, or through other means or mediums, in which employees are advised of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties and responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters.
- b) Provide CSEA With Access to New Employee Orientations: The District shall provide CSEA mandatory access to its new employee orientations. CSEA shall receive not less than ten (10) days' notice in advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided in a specific instance where there is an urgent need critical to the District's operations that was not reasonably foreseeable. Orientation sessions may include individual (one-on-one) new hire meetings with a Human Resources representative, a site administrator and/or group orientation sessions.
  - i. <u>Group Orientations:</u> In the event the District conducts a group orientation, CSEA shall have a minimum of one (1) hour, including travel time, of paid release time for two (2) CSEA representatives to conduct the orientation session. Said release time shall not be counted against the total release time contained elsewhere in the collective bargaining agreement. The CSEA Labor Relations Representative may also attend the orientation session.
  - ii. <u>Individual Orientations:</u> In the event the District conducts one-on-one orientations with new employees, CSEA shall have a minimum of thirty (30) minutes of paid release time, including travel time, for one (1) CSEA representative to conduct the orientation session. Said release time shall not be counted against the total release time contained elsewhere in the collective bargaining agreement. The CSEA Labor Relations Representative may also attend the orientation session.
  - iii. <u>Online Orientations</u>: In the event the District conducts online orientations, CSEA shall be notified of the onboarding appointments.
  - iv. During CSEA's orientation session, no District manager or supervisor or non-unit employee shall be present.
- c) <u>New Hire Information Packet</u>: The District shall include the CSEA membership application and a link for an electronic application in the new employee orientation packet.

- d) <u>In-person meeting entitlement:</u> The exclusive representative is entitled to schedule an in-person meeting at the worksite during employment hours if a public employer has not conducted an in-person new employee orientation within 30 days of the hire.
- e) <u>Relieved of other duties to attend the meeting</u>: Newly hired employees are relieved of their work duties in order to attend the meeting.
- f) <u>30-minute paid time</u>: During the meeting, the exclusive representative is allowed to communicate with the newly hired employees for up to 30 minutes on paid time.
- g) <u>Meeting space must be provided</u>: Employers must provide appropriate onsite meeting space within seven calendar days of receiving a request from the exclusive bargaining representative.
- h) <u>Alternative options:</u> Alternative access to NEO can be determined through mutual agreement between the employer and the exclusive representative.
- i) If the public employer has not conducted an in-person new employee orientation within 30 days of a newly hired employee's start date, and the new employee is working in person, the exclusive representative shall be entitled to schedule an in-person meeting at the worksite during employment hours, during which newly hired employees shall have the meeting. During this meeting, the exclusive representative shall be permitted to communicate directly with newly hired employees in the applicable bargaining unit for up to 30 minutes on paid time. Employers shall provide appropriate on-site meeting space within seven calendar days of receiving a request from the exclusive representative to provide more than 30 minutes of paid time for communicating with newly hired employees.
- j) If the state or local public health agency issues an order limiting the size of gatherings, the exclusive representative may schedule multiple meetings to ensure that newly hired employees have the opportunity to attend without exceeding the maximum allowable number of people. If such an order prohibits all gatherings, the exclusive representative may schedule a meeting or meetings once the order is lifted or modified to permit gatherings. Alternative access pursuant to these provisions shall be determined through mutual agreement between the employer and the exclusive representative.

# Article XIX - LAYOFF (AB438)

#### 60.600 Layoff

#### 60.600.1 Reason for Layoff

The layoff of classified employees shall only occur for a lack of work or a lack of funds, and only in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Personnel Commission. Any effects of layoff that may be negotiated by and between the District and any recognized exclusive representative shall be in addition to these rules and regulations. Any agreement between the District and a recognized exclusive representative may not provide for less than the mandated employee protections and procedures outlined in this chapter.

### 60.600.2 Advance Notification to Exclusive Representative

If any of the impacted positions are represented by a collective bargaining exclusive representative, the District and the exclusive bargaining representative shall meet in advance of layoff regarding effects of the proposed layoff. A copy of each layoff notice will be sent to the exclusive representative.

### 60.600.3 Action to be Taken by Board of Education

Before layoff notices can be issued, the Board of Education shall take action to abolish or reduce positions in assigned time, stating the reason for the abolishment(s) and/or reduction(s), giving the number of positions within each classification to be affected.

### 60.600.4 Notice of Layoff

In compliance with Ed Code §45117, the District shall notify the affected classified employees in writing of any layoff for lack of work or funds by March 15. The notice to the affected employee shall specify the reason for the layoff and be given by personal delivery, email, certified mail, and regular mail, to the last known home address of the employee on file in the Classified Personnel Office. Failure of the employee to notify Classified Personnel of a change of address shall not be grounds for voiding notification, or the staying of timelines outlined in these rules. For purposes of this rule, if a notice is mailed, the third working day following the postmark date of the notice shall be considered to be the official date of receipt.

Any notice of layoff shall include the following:

- a. reason for the layoff;
- b. employee's displacement rights, if any;
- c. employee's reemployment rights;
- d. name and classification of the employee designated for layoff;
- e. statement that the employee may have a right to unemployment insurance;
- f. notice that the employee may request a hearing to determine if there is a cause for not reemploying the employee for the ensuing year.

### 60.600.5 Procedure Regarding Layoff

- A. The Personnel Commission shall establish and maintain a seniority list indicating an employee's hire date, and seniority within classification. Such roster shall be available to interested employees through the Classified Personnel Office.
- B. Length of service (seniority as prescribed herein) shall be the only criterion used to effect layoffs. When classified employees are laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, layoff shall be made in inverse order of seniority in the class in which the layoff occurs. The employee who has been employed the shortest time in the class, plus higher classes, shall be considered to have the least seniority, and, therefore, shall be laid off first. Reemployment shall be in the reverse order of layoff.
- C. Seniority within classification is to be computed by date employee enters the classification, minus unpaid breaks in employment (excluding summer, spring & winter breaks). Seniority within classification continues to accrue in lower classes held after employee promotes to higher classifications.

District seniority ("Length of Service) shall be calculated from employee's date of hire as a regular employee, minus unpaid breaks in service (excluding summer, spring & winter breaks).

- D. The names of permanent and probationary employees thus laid off shall be placed upon the reemployment list for the class from which they were laid off. Names on the reemployment list shall be in the relative order of seniority.
- E. Classified employees laid off under this rule are eligible for reemployment for a period of thirty-nine (39) months and shall be reemployed in preference to new applicants.
- F. If two or more employees subject to layoff have equal class hire date and seniority, the employee with the least District seniority shall be laid off first. If District seniority is equal, the decision shall be made by lot.

### 60.600.6 Site Seniority

If a position in a classification is eliminated or reduced at a site or department which has multiple positions at that site or department with similar times, the least senior employee in that classification with those assigned hours will be bumped from the site before more senior employees in that classification and assigned hours are impacted.

EXAMPLE: A site has four Instructional Assistants that are each three (3) hours per day. If one three (3) hour position is eliminated at that site, the least senior of the four Instructional Assistants at that site will be bumped.

### 60.600.7 Bumping Rights

An employee in the classified service who is laid off from a class, and who has previous service in an equal or lower class, shall have the right to bump a less senior employee in that equal of lower class. Seniority for purposes of bumping shall include the total of the previous service in the equal or lower class, plus service in the class from which layoff occurs and in higher classes. In the event of a layoff the following bumping priority will apply:

1st ... An employee whose position is eliminated or reduced shall first be placed in a vacant position with an equal assignment in the same class when compared with the employee's current position.

2nd ... If the previous option is unavailable, the employee shall be placed in a vacant position that has additional assigned time in the same class when compared with the employee's current position.

3rd ... If the previous option is unavailable, the employee will be allowed to bump into a position providing an equal assignment in the same class when compared with the employee's current position, and which is occupied by a less senior employee.

4th ... If the previous option is unavailable, the employee will be allowed to bump into a position providing additional assigned time in the same class when compared with the employee's current position, and which is held by the least senior employee of those less senior employees holding positions with more assigned time.

5th... If the previous option is unavailable, the employee will be allowed to bump into a position in the class with less assigned time that is closest to the employee's current assigned time, and which is held by a less senior employee in the class. As an alternative, the employee shall also have the option of bumping into an equal (1st option) or lower class (2nd option) previously held as a regular classified employee that will provide at least the same assigned time as the employee's current position. 6th... If the employee is the least senior employee in the class, the employee shall have the option of bumping into an equal (1st option) or lower class (2nd option) previously held as a regular classified employee. The employee will repeat the sequence of options outlined in this rule for the equal class position first. If no alternative is available in the equal class, the employee will repeat the sequence of options outlined in this rule for the lower class.

### 60.600.8 Voluntary Demotion or Transfer

A classified employee who will suffer a layoff for lack of work or lack of funds may accept a voluntary demotion to a vacant position in a lower class or equal class, providing that the employee is deemed to be qualified to perform the duties thereof by the Personnel Commission, and provided further that the Board of Education approves the voluntary demotion or movement to an equal class.

### 60.600.9 Layoff Versus Temporary Positions

No regular classified employee shall be laid off from any position while employees serving temporary appointments are retained in positions of the same class, unless the regular employee refuses assignment to the temporary position.

### 60.600.10 Acceptance of Substitute or Temporary Employment

An employee who has been laid off for lack of funds or lack of work and who is on a reemployment list, may be employed as a substitute or temporary employee in his/her original class or any other class for which qualified (as determined by the Personnel Commission). Such employment shall in no way jeopardize or otherwise affect his/her status or eligibility for reemployment. This section is a negotiable issue for represented employees.

### 60.600.11 Refusal of Temporary Employment

Refusal of an offer of limited-term employment shall not affect the standing of any employee on a reemployment list.

### 60.600.12 Salary Placement After Demotion or Placement in an Equal Class

A classified employee who accepts a demotion in lieu of a layoff shall be placed on the salary range of the lower class, at the step closest to the employee's hourly salary rate in the higher classification, without being more than the previous hourly salary rate.

A classified employee who accepts placement in an equal classification shall be placed on the same salary range and step as in the previous position.

# **ARTICLE XX - SAVINGS CLAUSE**

In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by a final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction or through a final decree of government, state, or local body, such decision shall not invalidate the entire agreement, it being the expressed intention of the parties hereto that all other provisions are not declared invalid and shall remain in full force and effect. The parties agree that any invalid provisions of this Agreement shall be modified to comply with existing regulations or laws.

### **ARTICLE XXI - SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT**

The District and Association agree that it is in their mutual benefit to encourage the resolution of differences through the meeting and negotiations process. Therefore, it is agreed that the Association and the District will support the terms of this Agreement and will not appear before the Board of Education or the Personnel Commission to seek change or improvement in any matters subject to the meeting and negotiation process.

### ARTICLE XXII - NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT

The Association agrees that it shall not call, sanction, or engage in any strike or work stoppage. The District agrees that it shall not cause nor engage in a lockout.

### ARTICLE XXIII - ZIPPER CLAUSE

This Agreement, when signed by the parties hereto, supersedes all other Agreements and represents the sole Agreement between the parties.

During the term of this Agreement, the Association and the Board waive their respective rights to meet and negotiate with respect to any provision contained within or matters outside the Agreement with the following exception:

Incorporating into the agreement the addition of statutory guarantees providing mandated benefits amended into or added to California or Federal law after negotiation of this Agreement.

If, during its term, the parties hereto should mutually agree to modify, amend, or alter the provisions of this Agreement in any respect, any such changes shall be effective only if reduced to writing and executed by the authorized representatives of the District and C.S.E.A., and ratified by the Board of Education, if necessary. Any such changes made shall become a part of this Agreement and subject to its terms of automatic renewal or termination.

No individual employee or group of employees acting independently of C.S.E.A. signatory hereto may alter, amend, or modify any of the provisions herein.

### ARTICLE XXIV - TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective and in full force on October 1, 2022, and shall continue in effect through September 30, 2025.

Marisol Alarid, President Chapter 248

Barbara R. Samperi, Presiden Board of Education

37

# CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

# UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE

Effective Date: July 1, 2022

				Month	nly Salary S	<u>teps</u>		
CLASSIFICATION	<u>RANGE</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>Hourly</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Accounting Assistant	125	\$3,944	(\$22.751)	\$4,136	\$4,340	\$4,562	\$4,786	\$5,026
Adult School Registrar/Assistant	140	4,237	(24.445)	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,409
ASB Accounting Technician	155	4,562	(26.318)	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,825
Assistant Buyer	170	4,903	(28.285)	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252
Attendance/Records Clerk	120	3,837	(22.135)	4,033	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,904
Budget/Financial Analyst	205	5,816	(33.552)	6,106	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,420
Buyer	190	5,410	(31.210)	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901
Campus Security Assistant	120	3,837	(22.135)	4,033	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,904
Career Development Program Specialist	215	6,106	(35.228)	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,423	7,794
Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant (COTA)	200	5,677	(32.753)	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,247
Child Care Assistant	50	2,726	(15.726)	2,856	3,004	3,154	3,319	3,485
Clerical Assistant	105	3,571	(20.600)	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,557
College and Career Technician	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Communication Center Assistant	160	4,671	(26.946)	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,961
Communications Specialist	200	5,677	(32.753)	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,247
Early Learning Assistant	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Early Learning Instructor	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Elementary School Library/Media Technician	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Financial Aid Technician	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Food Service Assistant	65	2,944	(16.982)	3,082	3,246	3,405	3,571	3,749
Food Service Assistant II	80	3,154	(18.194)	3,319	3,480	3,653	3,837	4,029
Food Service Helper	35	2,533	(14.615)	2,669	2,796	2,944	3,082	3,236
Instructional Assistant	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Assistant - Adult School	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Assistant - Computer Applications	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Assistant - Dental	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Assistant - Massage Therapy	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Assistant - Nursing	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Instructional Media Technician	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Intermediate Accounting Assistant	140	4,237	(24.445)	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,409
Intermediate Clerical Assistant	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Intermediate School Office Manager	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Labor Compliance Technician	155	4,562	(26.318)	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,825
Lead Food Service Assistant	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Lead Sign Language Interpreter	235	6,725	(38.800)	7,065	7,423	7,791	8,186	8,597

AR 5241.1

### UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE (cont.)

AR 5241.1

Base Salary Schedule				Monthl	y Salary St	<u>eps</u>		
<b>CLASSIFICATION</b>	RANGE	<u>1</u>	Hourly	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Makeup Artistry Assistant	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Nursing Specialist	220	6,252	(36.072)	6,574	6,901	7,239	7,603	7,984
Payroll Technician	175	5,025	(28.989)	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106	6,412
Personnel Assistant	130	4,033	(23.265)	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,148
Personnel/Credentials Technician	175	5,025	(28.989)	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106	6,412
Personnel/Payroll Assistant (Adult School)	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Physical Education Assistant	95	3,405	(19.641)	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
Pupil/Support Services Technician	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Purchasing Assistant	140	4,237	(24.445)	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,409
Registered Behavior Technician	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Registrar	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
School Based Therapist	215	6,106	(35.228)	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,423	7,794
School Health Technician	170	4,903	(28.285)	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252
School Office Manager	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Secretary	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Senior Accounting Assistant	155	4,562	(26.318)	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,825
Senior Accounting Technician	190	5,410	(31.210)	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901
Senior Clerical Assistant	125	3,944	(22.751)	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,786	5,026
Senior Instructional Assistant	105	3,571	(20.600)	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,557
Senior Instructional Assistant - Behavior	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Senior Instructional Assistant - Sign Language	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Senior Instructional Assistant - Medical	115	3,747	(21.615)	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
Senior Personnel Technician	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Senior School Office Manager	160	4,671	(26.946)	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,961
Senior Secretary	170	4,903	(28.285)	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252
Senior Student Information Systems Operator	205	5,816	(33.552)	6,106	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,420
Sign Language Interpreter	215	6,106	(35.228)	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,423	7,794
Special Education Data & Compliance Specialist	165	4,786	(27.612)	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
Special Education Technician	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680

Speech-Language Pathology Assistant	200	5,677	(32.753)	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,247
Student Information Systems Operator	190	5,410	(31.210)	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901
Student Testing Technician	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
Translator-Interpreter	150	4,448	(25.664)	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
True Lasting Connections Resource Center Asst	125	3,944	(22.751)	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,786	5,026

\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

# UNIT I BILINGUAL ORAL SALARY SCHEDULE

Effective Date: July 1, 2022

AR 5241.1

				Month	ly Salary S	<u>teps</u>		
<b>CLASSIFICATION</b>	<u>RANGE</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>Hourly</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Accounting Assistant	425	\$4,045	(\$23.335)	\$4,239	\$4,448	\$4,675	\$4,906	\$5,151
Adult School Registrar/Assistant	440	4,343	(25.055)	4,562	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,545
ASB Accounting Technician	455	4,675	(26.971)	4,906	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,969
Assistant Buyer	470	5,027	(29.002)	5,281	5,547	5,819	6,107	6,413
Attendance/Records Clerk	420	3,934	(22.694)	4,133	4,343	4,562	4,789	5,029
Budget/Financial Analyst	505	5,963	(34.403)	6,260	6,569	6,895	7,244	7,604
Buyer	490	5,547	(32.004)	5,819	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,077
Campus Security Assistant	420	3,934	(22.694)	4,133	4,343	4,562	4,789	5,029
Career Development Program Specialist	515	6,260	(36.116)	6,569	6,895	7,607	7,607	7,987
Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant (COTA)	500	5,819	(33.571)	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,073	7,427
Child Care Assistant	350	2,794	(16.119)	2,926	3,081	3,233	3,401	3,572
Clerical Assistant	405	3,662	(21.126)	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,671
College and Career Technician	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Communications Specialist	500	5,819	(33.571)	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,073	7,427
Communication Center Assistant	460	4,789	(27.631)	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,819	6,109
Early Learning Assistant	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Early Learning Instructor	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Elementary School Library/Media Technician	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Financial Aid Technician	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Food Service Assistant	365	3,017	(17.408)	3,159	3,328	3,489	3,662	3,846
Food Service Assistant II	380	3,233	(18.651)	3,401	3,567	3,746	3,934	4,131
Food Service Helper	335	2,597	(14.983)	2,735	2,869	3,017	3,159	3,318
Instructional Assistant	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Assistant - Adult School	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Assistant - Computer Applications	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Assistant - Dental	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Assistant - Massage Therapy	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Assistant - Nursing	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Instructional Media Technician	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Intermediate Accounting Assistant	440	4,343	(25.055)	4,562	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,545
Intermediate Clerical Assistant	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Intermediate School Office Manager	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Labor Compliance Technician	455	4,675	(26.971)	4,906	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,969
Lead Food Service Assistant	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Lead Sign Language Interpreter	535	6,895	(39.778)	7,244	7,607	7,987	8,388	8,807

### UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE (cont.)

AR 5241.1

Bilingual Oral Salary Schedule				Monthl	<u>y Salary St</u>	<u>eps</u>		
<b>CLASSIFICATION</b>	<u>RANGE</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>Hourly</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Makeup Artistry Assistant	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Nursing Specialist	520	6,412	(36.992)	6,741	7,073	7,423	7,795	8,184
Payroll Technician	475	5,150	(29.713)	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,260	6,573
Personnel Assistant	430	4,133	(23.843)	4,343	4,562	4,789	5,027	5,279
Personnel/Credentials Technician	475	5,150	(29.713)	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,260	6,573
Personnel/Payroll Assistant (Adult School)	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Physical Education Assistant	395	3,489	(20.130)	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
Pupil/Support Services Technician	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Purchasing Assistant	440	4,343	(25.055)	4,562	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,545
Registered Behavior Technician	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Registrar	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
School Based Therapist	515	6,260	(36.116)	6,569	6,895	7,244	7,607	7,987
School Health Technician	470	5,027	(29.002)	5,281	5,547	5,819	6,107	6,413
School Office Manager	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Secretary	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Senior Accounting Assistant	455	4,675	(26.971)	4,906	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,969
Senior Accounting Technician	490	5,547	(32.004)	5,819	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,077
Senior Clerical Assistant	425	4,045	(23.335)	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,906	5,151
Senior Instructional Assistant	405	3,662	(21.126)	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,671
Senior Instructional Assistant - Behavior	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Senior Instructional Assistant - Sign Language	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Senior Instructional Assistant - Medical	415	3,842	(22.167)	4,045	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,909
Senior Personnel Technician	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Senior School Office Manager	460	4,789	(27.631)	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,819	6,109
Senior Secretary	470	5,027	(29.002)	5,281	5,547	5,819	6,107	6,413
Senior Student Information Systems Operator	505	5,963	(34.403)	6,260	6,569	6,895	7,244	7,604
Sign Language Interpreter	515	6,260	(36.116)	6,569	6,895	7,244	7,607	7,987
Special Education Data & Compliance Specialist	465	4,906	(28.304)	5,150	5,407	5,685	5,963	6,261
Special Education Technician	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Speech-Language Pathology Assistant	500	5,819	(33.571)	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,073	7,427
Student Information Systems Operator	490	5,547	(32.004)	5,819	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,077
Student Testing Technician	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
Translator-Interpreter	450	4,562	(26.318)	4,789	5,027	5,281	5,547	5,825
True Lasting Connections Resource Center Asst	425	4,045	(23.335)	4,239	4,448	4,675	4,906	5,151

\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

# UNIT I BILINGUAL BI-LITERATE SALARY SCHEDULE

Effective Date: July 1, 2022

				Monthl	y Salary Step	<u>)S</u>		
CLASSIFICATION	<u>RANGE</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>Hourly</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Accounting Assistant	725	\$4,144	(\$23.906)	\$4,343	\$4,555	\$4,789	\$5,025	\$5,276
Adult School Registrar/Assistant	740	4,450	(25.670)	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,680
ASB Accounting Technician	755	4,789	(27.631)	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,115
Assistant Buyer	770	5,149	(29.706)	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,567
Attendance/Records Clerk	720	4,029	(23.246)	4,235	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,150
Budget/Financial Analyst	805	6,108	(35.240)	6,411	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,791
Buyer	790	5,682	(32.778)	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,251
Campus Security Assistant	720	4,029	(23.246)	4,235	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,150
Career Development Program Specialist	815	6,411	(36.985)	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183
Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant (COTA)	800	5,962	(34.396)	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,610
Child Care Assistant	650	2,863	(16.519)	3,000	3,155	3,311	3,484	3,658
Clerical Assistant	705	3,751	(21.640)	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,783
College and Career Technician	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Communications Specialist	800	5,962	(34.396)	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,610
Communication Center Assistant	760	4,905	(28.298)	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,260
Early Learning Assistant	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Early Learning Instructor	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Elementary School Library/Media Technician	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Financial Aid Technician	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Food Service Assistant	665	3,091	(17.833)	3,238	3,410	3,576	3,751	3,939
Food Service Assistant II	680	3,311	(19.102)	3,484	3,654	3,837	4,029	4,231
Food Service Helper	635	2,663	(15.364)	2,802	2,937	3,091	3,238	3,400
Instructional Assistant	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Assistant - Adult School	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Assistant - Computer Applications	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Assistant - Dental	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Assistant - Massage Therapy	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Assistant - Nursing	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Instructional Media Technician	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Intermediate Accounting Assistant	740	4,450	(25.670)	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,680
Intermediate Clerical Assistant	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Intermediate School Office Manager	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Labor Compliance Technician	755	4,789	(27.631)	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,115
Lead Food Service Assistant	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Lead Sign Language Interpreter	835	7,063	(40.749)	7,421	7,794	8,183	8,592	9,022

AR 5241.1

### UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE (cont.)

AR 5241.1

Bilingual Literate Salary Schedule				Monthly	/ Salary Step	<u>S</u>		
<b>CLASSIFICATION</b>	<u>RANGE</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>Hourly</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
Makeup Artistry Assistant	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Nursing Specialist	820	6,569	(37.899)	6,906	7,247	7,602	7,986	8,385
Payroll Technician	775	5,277	(30.443)	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,411	6,731
Personnel Assistant	730	4,235	(24.433)	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,407
Personnel/Credentials Technician	775	5,277	(30.443)	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,411	6,731
Personnel/Payroll Assistant (Adult School)	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Physical Education Assistant	695	3,576	(20.631)	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
Pupil/Support Services Technician	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Purchasing Assistant	740	4,450	(25.670)	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,680
Registered Behavior Technician	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Registrar	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
School Based Therapist	815	6,411	(36.985)	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183
School Health Technician	770	5,149	(29.706)	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,567
School Office Manager	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Secretary	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Senior Accounting Assistant	755	4,789	(27.631)	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,115
Senior Accounting Technician	790	5,682	(32.778)	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,251
Senior Clerical Assistant	725	4,144	(23.906)	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,025	5,276
Senior Instructional Assistant	705	3,751	(21.640)	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,783
Senior Instructional Assistant - Behavior	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Senior Instructional Assistant - Sign Language	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Senior Instructional Assistant - Medical	715	3,935	(22.700)	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
Senior Personnel Technician	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Senior School Office Manager	760	4,905	(28.298)	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,260
Senior Secretary	770	5,149	(29.706)	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,567
Senior Student Information Systems Operator	805	6,108	(35.240)	6,411	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,791
Sign Language Interpreter	815	6,411	(36.985)	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183
Special Education Data & Compliance Specialist	765	5,025	(28.989)	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
Special Education Technician	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Speech-Language Pathology Assistant	800	5,962	(34.396)	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,610
Student Information Systems Operator	790	5,682	(32.778)	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,251
Student Testing Technician	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
Translator-Interpreter	750	4,671	(26.946)	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
True Lasting Connections Resource Center Asst	725	4,144	(23.906)	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,025	5,276

\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

# UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE

AR 5241.1

## Effective Date: July 1, 2022 Monthly Salary Ranges and Hourly Equivalents

Base Sala	ary Schedule						
Range	Step "A" Hourly						
Number	Equivalent	<u>1</u>	2	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
10	\$12.921	\$2,240	\$2,358	\$2,467	\$2,594	\$2,726	\$ 2,862
15	13.283	2,302	2,421	2,533	2,669	2,796	2,936
20	13.606	2,358	2,467	2,594	2,726	2,856	2,999
25	13.968	2,421	2,533	2,669	2,796	2,944	3,091
30	14.234	2,467	2,594	2,726	2,856	3,004	3,154
35	14.615	2,533	2,669	2,796	2,944	3,082	3,236
40	14.964	2,594	2,726	2,856	3,004	3,154	3,312
45	15.396	2,669	2,796	2,944	3,082	3,246	3,409
50	15.726	2,726	2,856	3,004	3,154	3,319	3,485
55	16.132	2,796	2,944	3,082	3,246	3,405	3,575
60	16.475	2,856	3,004	3,154	3,319	3,480	3,654
65	16.982	2,944	3,082	3,246	3,405	3,571	3,749
70	17.331	3,004	3,154	3,319	3,480	3,653	3,836
75	17.782	3,082	3,246	3,405	3,571	3,747	3,935
80	18.194	3,154	3,319	3,480	3,653	3,837	4,029
85	18.728	3,246	3,405	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,140
90	19.146	3,319	3,480	3,653	3,837	4,033	4,235
95	19.641	3,405	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,343
100	20.079	3,480	3,653	3,837	4,033	4,237	4,448
105	20.600	3,571	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,557
110	21.076	3,653	3,837	4,033	4,237	4,448	4,671
115	21.615	3,747	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,789
120	22.135	3,837	4,033	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,904
125	22.751	3,944	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,786	5,026
130	23.265	4,033	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,148
135	23.862	4,136	4,340	4,562	4,786	5,025	5,276
140	24.445	4,237	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,409
145	25.036	4,340	4,562	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,539
150	25.664	4,448	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,680
155	26.318	4,562	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,825
160	26.946	4,671	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,961
165	27.612	4,786	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106
170	28.285	4,903	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252
175	28.989	5,025	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106	6,412
180	29.719	5,151	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,565
185	30.436	5,276	5,547	5,816	6,106	6,408	6,728
190	31.210	5,410	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901
195	32.004	5,547	5,816	6,106	6,408	6,725	7,062
200	32.753	5,677	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,247
205	33.552	5,816	6,106	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,420
210	34.358	5,955	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,239	7,601
215	35.228	6,106	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,423	7,794
220	36.072	6,252	6,574	6,901	7,239	7,603	7,984
225	36.966	6,408	6,725	7,065	7,423	7,791	8,181
230	37.925	6,574	6,901	7,239	7,603	7,984	8,383
005	00 000	C 705		7 400	7 704	0 4 0 0	0 5 4 7

23538.8006,7257,0657,4237,7918,1868,597\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

**Bilingual Oral Salary Schedule** 

# AR 5241.1

## Effective Date: July 1, 2022 Monthly Salary Ranges and Hourly Equivalents

Number     Exclusion     1     2     3     4     5     15       310     \$13,219     \$2,291     \$2,415     \$2,529     \$2,661     \$2,794     \$2,934       315     13,613     2,360     2,483     2,597     2,735     2,869     3,017     3,168       320     13,320     2,651     2,794     2,926     3,061     3,233       330     14,850     2,697     2,735     2,869     3,017     3,159     3,338     3,494       350     15,51     2,869     3,017     3,159     3,328     3,494       350     16,551     2,869     3,017     3,159     3,328     3,494       350     16,551     2,869     3,017     3,159     3,228     3,449     3,662       360     16,881     2,926     3,081     3,233     3,401     3,567     3,746     3,934     4,413     3,934     4,33     4,463     3,949     3,662     3,849     3,662     3,849     3,662     3,844<	-	Oral Salary Sched	ule					
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Range	Step "A" Hourly	4	0	2	Δ	F	45
315   13.613   2.360   2.483   2.957   2.735   2.668   3.012     320   13.3930   2.463   2.697   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.169     330   14.353   2.597   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.238     345   16.351   2.661   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.494     350   16.119   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.494     350   16.119   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.401   3.667     353   16.551   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.449   3.662     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746     370   17.76   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746   3.934     375   18.226   3.159   3.228   3.449   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.247     390   19.622   3.041   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343 <td><u>numper</u></td> <td>Equivalent</td> <td><u>1</u></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td><u>3</u></td> <td><u>4</u></td> <td><u>0</u></td> <td><u>15</u></td>	<u>numper</u>	Equivalent	<u>1</u>	<u> </u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>15</u>
315   13.613   2.360   2.483   2.957   2.735   2.668   3.012     320   13.3930   2.463   2.697   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.169     330   14.353   2.597   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.238     345   16.351   2.661   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.494     350   16.119   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.494     350   16.119   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.401   3.667     353   16.551   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.449   3.662     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746     370   17.76   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746   3.934     375   18.226   3.159   3.228   3.449   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.247     390   19.622   3.041   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343 <td>310</td> <td>\$13.219</td> <td>\$2,291</td> <td>\$2,415</td> <td>\$2,529</td> <td>\$2,661</td> <td>\$2,794</td> <td>\$2,934</td>	310	\$13.219	\$2,291	\$2,415	\$2,529	\$2,661	\$2,794	\$2,934
320   13.30   2.415   2.529   2.661   2.744   2.926   3.077   3.169     335   14.803   2.529   2.661   2.774   2.986   3.081   3.235     345   14.500   2.529   2.661   2.774   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.318     345   15.777   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.401   3.572     355   16.551   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.489   3.662     360   16.581   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746     365   16.511   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.442     370   17.776   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.394     385   19.197   3.328   3.449   3.662   3.442   4.045   4.239     390   19.622   3.041   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343     400   2.051   3.469   3.662	315	13.613				2,735	2,869	3,012
325   14.323   2.483   2.597   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.169     330   14.483   2.597   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.318     340   15.351   2.861   2.794   2.926   3.061   3.233   3.398     345   15.777   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.223   3.401   3.563     355   16.511   2.896   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.463   3.663     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746     375   18.266   3.159   3.228   3.449   3.662   3.842   4.034     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343     390   19.622   3.401   3.657   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.443   4.661     400   20.581   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.443   4.661     400   20.561   3.449   3.662   3.842 <td>320</td> <td>13.930</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	320	13.930						
330   14.500   2.529   2.661   2.794   2.926   3.081   3.235     335   14.983   2.967   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.318     340   15.351   2.861   2.794   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.393     345   15.777   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.401   3.572     355   16.551   2.869   3.017   3.199   3.228   3.489   3.662   3.842     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.223   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934     375   18.226   3.159   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.034     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133     385   19.197   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.444   4.671     400   20.591   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     410   2.1609   3.746 <td>325</td> <td>14.323</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	325	14.323						
335   14.983   2.597   2.735   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.318     340   15.351   2.661   2.774   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.395     345   15.777   2.735   2.969   3.017   3.159   3.223   3.401   3.572     355   16.551   2.666   3.017   3.159   3.228   3.469   3.662     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934     370   17.708   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343     390   19.622   3.011   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     400   2.0581   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.671     410   2.166   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.675     4100   2.0551   3.642 <td>330</td> <td>14.590</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	330	14.590						
340   15.351   2.661   2.794   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.395     345   15.777   2.735   2.869   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.572     355   16.551   2.869   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.499   3.663     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.223   3.401   3.567   3.746     370   17.776   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133     380   19.197   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239     400   20.581   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     400   20.513   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     410   21.607   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.561  4	335	14.983						
35016.1192.7942.9263.0813.2333.4013.572 $355$ 16.5512.8693.0173.1593.2833.4093.6623.446 $360$ 16.8812.9263.0813.2333.4013.5673.746 $365$ 17.4083.0173.1593.3283.4493.6623.8424.034 $370$ 17.7763.0813.2233.4013.5673.7463.9344.131 $380$ 18.6513.2333.4013.5673.7463.9344.131 $386$ 19.1973.3283.4893.6623.8424.0454.247 $390$ 19.6223.4013.5673.7463.9344.1334.343 $450$ 2.01303.4893.6623.8424.0454.2394.448 $405$ 2.11263.6623.8424.0454.2394.4484.671 $410$ 21.6093.7463.9344.1334.3434.5624.789 $415$ 22.1673.8424.0454.2394.4484.6754.9065.151 $400$ 23.8434.1334.3434.5624.7895.0275.2815.547 $455$ 2.6943.9344.1334.3434.5624.7895.0275.2815.547 $452$ 2.3354.0454.2394.4484.6754.9065.1505.0075.271 $455$ 2.6644.4844.6754.9065.150		15.351						
350   16.119   2.794   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.572     355   16.551   2.899   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.499   3.662   3.484     360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746     365   17.408   3.017   3.199   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.034     370   17.776   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.131     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.434     390   19.622   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.434     405   2.120   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.671     410   21.609   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789     410   21.620   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.675   4.906   5.151     410   21.620	345	15.777		2,869		3,159		
360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746     365   17.408   3.017   3.159   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934     375   18.226   3.159   3.238   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.033     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.131     385   19.197   3.228   3.499   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.237     390   19.622   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.661     400   20.581   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789     410   21.609   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789   5.027   5.279     420   22.694   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789   5.027   5.279     435   24.458   4.239   4.448   4.675   4.906   5.150   5.407   5.687     440	350	16.119	2,794	2,926	3,081	3,233		3,572
360   16.881   2.926   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746     385   17.408   3.017   3.159   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.846     375   18.226   3.159   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.131     385   19.197   3.228   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.247     390   19.622   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     400   20.581   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.561     410   21.609   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789     410   22.167   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.675   4.906   5.151     410   21.609   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789   5.027   5.279     425   23.335   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.675   4.906   5.150   5.407   5.677     440	355	16.551	2,869	3,017	3,159	3,328	3,489	3,663
370 $17.776$ $3.081$ $3.233$ $3.401$ $3.667$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $375$ $18.226$ $3.159$ $3.328$ $3.489$ $3.662$ $3.842$ $4.034$ $380$ $18.651$ $3.233$ $3.401$ $3.567$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.131$ $385$ $19.197$ $3.328$ $3.489$ $3.662$ $3.842$ $4.045$ $4.247$ $390$ $19.622$ $3.401$ $3.567$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.340$ $395$ $20.130$ $3.489$ $3.662$ $3.842$ $4.045$ $4.239$ $4.461$ $400$ $20.581$ $3.567$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.343$ $4.561$ $405$ $21.126$ $3.662$ $3.842$ $4.045$ $4.239$ $4.448$ $4.675$ $410$ $21.609$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.343$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $410$ $21.609$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.343$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $410$ $21.609$ $3.746$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.343$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $420$ $22.694$ $3.934$ $4.133$ $4.343$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $5.027$ $433$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $5.027$ $5.281$ $5.455$ $440$ $25.055$ $4.343$ $4.562$ $4.789$ $5.027$ $5.281$ $452$ $26.371$ $4.675$ $4.906$ $5.150$ $5.407$ $5.865$ $440$ $25.564$ $4.448$ $4.675$	360	16.881	2,926	3,081	3,233	3,401	3,567	
370   17.776   3.081   3.233   3.401   3.667   3.746   3.934     375   18.226   3.159   3.328   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.034     380   18.651   3.233   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133     385   19.197   3.328   3.449   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239     390   19.622   3.401   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.340     395   20.130   3.489   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.461     400   20.581   3.567   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562     4105   21.126   3.662   3.842   4.045   4.239   4.448   4.675   4.909     410   21.609   3.746   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789   5.027   5.279     420   22.694   3.934   4.133   4.343   4.562   4.789   5.027   5.279     433   23.843   4.133   4.343 <td>365</td> <td>17.408</td> <td>3,017</td> <td>3,159</td> <td>3,328</td> <td>3,489</td> <td>3,662</td> <td>3,846</td>	365	17.408	3,017	3,159	3,328	3,489	3,662	3,846
380     18.651     3.233     3.401     3.667     3.746     3.934     4.131       385     19.197     3.328     3.489     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.247       390     19.622     3.401     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.451       400     20.581     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.448     4.671       400     20.581     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.448     4.671       410     21.609     3.746     3.934     4.133     4.343     4.562     4.789       415     22.167     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.448     4.675     4.906     5.151       430     23.843     4.133     4.343     4.562     4.789     5.027     5.281     5.547       440     25.055     4.343     4.562     4.789     5.027     5.281     5.547       450     26.318     4.562     4.789     5.027     5.281     5.547 <td< td=""><td>370</td><td>17.776</td><td>3,081</td><td>3,233</td><td>3,401</td><td>3,567</td><td></td><td>3,934</td></td<>	370	17.776	3,081	3,233	3,401	3,567		3,934
380     18.651     3.233     3.401     3.662     3.746     3.934     4.131       385     19.197     3.328     3.489     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.247       390     19.622     3.401     3.667     3.746     3.934     4.133     4.343       400     20.581     3.667     3.746     3.934     4.133     4.343     4.561       400     20.581     3.662     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.448     4.671       410     21.609     3.746     3.934     4.133     4.343     4.562     4.789       415     22.167     3.842     4.045     4.239     4.448     4.675     4.906     5.151       420     22.694     3.934     4.133     4.343     4.562     4.789     5.027     5.281       430     23.843     4.133     4.343     4.562     4.789     5.027     5.281     5.547       440     25.055     4.343     4.675     4.906     5.150 <td< td=""><td>375</td><td>18.226</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3,662</td><td>3,842</td><td></td></td<>	375	18.226				3,662	3,842	
39019.6223.4013.5673.7463.9344.1334.34039520.1303.4893.6623.8424.0454.2394.45140020.5813.5673.7463.9344.1334.3434.56140521.1263.6623.8424.0454.2394.4484.67141021.6093.7463.9344.1334.3434.5624.78941522.1673.8424.0454.2394.4484.6754.90642022.6943.9344.1334.3434.6624.7895.02742523.3354.0454.2394.4484.6754.9065.15143023.8434.1334.3434.5624.7895.0275.27943524.4584.2394.4484.6754.9065.1505.40844025.0554.3434.5624.7895.0275.2815.54544525.6644.4484.6754.9065.1505.4075.6855.96346027.6314.7895.0275.2815.5475.8196.10745526.9714.6754.9065.1505.4075.6855.9636.26147029.0025.0275.2815.5475.8196.1076.4126.73348030.4685.2815.5475.8196.1076.4126.7317.92748532.7975.6855.963 <td< td=""><td>380</td><td>18.651</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	380	18.651						
39019.6223.4013.5673.7463.9344.1334.34039520.1303.4893.6623.8424.0454.2394.45140020.5813.5673.7463.9344.1334.3434.56140521.1263.6623.8424.0454.2394.4484.67141021.6093.7463.9344.1334.3434.5624.78941522.1673.8424.0454.2394.4484.6754.90942022.6943.9344.1334.3434.6624.7895.02942523.3354.0454.2394.4484.6754.9065.15143023.8434.1334.3434.5624.7895.0275.28143524.4584.2394.4484.6754.9065.1505.40844025.0554.3434.5624.7895.0275.2815.54545526.9714.6754.9065.1505.4075.6855.96346027.6314.7895.0275.2815.5475.8196.10746528.3044.9065.1505.4075.6855.9636.26147029.0025.0275.2815.5475.8196.1076.41247029.0025.0275.2815.5475.8196.1076.41248631.1915.4075.6855.9636.2606.5696.895 <td>385</td> <td>19.197</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3,842</td> <td>4,045</td> <td></td>	385	19.197				3,842	4,045	
40020.5813,5673,7463,9344,1334,3434,56140521.1263,6623,8424,0454,2394,4484,67141021.6093,7463,9344,1334,3434,5624,78941522.1673,8424,0454,2394,4484,6754,90942022.6943,9344,1334,3434,5624,7895,02942523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40744025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,545444525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.0044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26047029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248631.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,412 <t< td=""><td>390</td><td>19.622</td><td>3,401</td><td>3,567</td><td>3,746</td><td>3,934</td><td>4,133</td><td></td></t<>	390	19.622	3,401	3,567	3,746	3,934	4,133	
40020.5813,5673,7463,9344,1334,3434,56140521.1263,6623,8424,0454,2394,4484,67141021.6093,7463,9344,1334,3434,5624,78941522.1673,8424,0454,2394,4484,6754,90942022.6943,9344,1334,3434,5624,7895,02942523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40744025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54744525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,68544526.6144,4884,6754,9065,1505,4075,68545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96346027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26047029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73147529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89548631.1915,4075,6855,9636,260	395	20.130	3,489	3,662	3,842	4,045	4,239	4,451
40521.1263,6623,8424,0454,2394,4484,67141021.6093,7463,9344,1334,3434,5624,78941522.1673,8424,0454,2394,4484,6754,90942022.6943,9344,1334,3434,5624,7895,02942523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54544525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,68545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96346027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26047029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,24449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42349032.0045,5475,8196,107 <td< td=""><td>400</td><td>20.581</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	400	20.581						
41021.6093,7463,9344,1334,3434,5624,78941522.1673,8424,0454,2394,4484,6754,90942022.6943,9344,1334,3434,5624,7895,02942523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54744525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,68544526.6144,4884,6754,9065,1505,4075,68546027.6314,7695,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73348030.4685,2815,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0777,94249032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79549032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,795 <td< td=""><td>405</td><td>21.126</td><td>3,662</td><td>3,842</td><td></td><td>4,239</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	405	21.126	3,662	3,842		4,239		
41522.1673,8424,0454,2394,4484,6754,90942022.6943,9344,1334,3434,5624,7895,02942523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96346027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42349532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,412 <td< td=""><td>410</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	410							
42022.6943.9344.1334.3434.5624.7895.02942523.3354.0454.2394.4484.6754.9065.15143023.8434.1334.3434.5624.7895.0275.27943524.4584.2394.4484.6754.9065.1505.40844025.0554.3434.5624.7895.0275.2815.54744525.6644.4484.6754.9065.1505.4075.67745026.3184.5624.7895.0275.2815.5475.82546526.9714.6754.9065.1505.4075.6855.96946027.6314.7895.0275.2815.5475.8196.10946528.3044.9065.1505.4075.6855.9636.26147029.0025.0275.2815.5475.8196.1076.41347529.7135.1505.4075.6855.9636.2606.57348030.4685.2815.5475.8196.1076.4126.73249032.0045.5475.8196.1076.4126.7417.07349032.0445.9636.2606.5696.8957.23950033.5715.8196.1076.4126.7417.0737.42350534.4035.9636.2606.5696.8957.2447.6077.987 <td>415</td> <td>22.167</td> <td>3,842</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	415	22.167	3,842					
42523.3354,0454,2394,4484,6754,9065,15143023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,04844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54744525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,67745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82546027.6314,7795,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0125,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42349032.0145,9636,2606,5696,8957,2347,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79552036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,987 <td< td=""><td>420</td><td>22.694</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	420	22.694						
43023.8434,1334,3434,5624,7895,0275,27943524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54744525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,68745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73148030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07349532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,2347,60749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38651536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,386520	425	23.335			4,448	4,675	4,906	
43524.4584,2394,4484,6754,9065,1505,40844025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54544525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,68745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23949032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536,1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036,9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18652537,8996,5696,8957,244 <td< td=""><td>430</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	430							
44025.0554,3434,5624,7895,0275,2815,54744525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,67745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,24449032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42350534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,80753539.7786,8957,2447,607 <td< td=""><td>435</td><td></td><td>•</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	435		•					
44525.6644,4484,6754,9065,1505,4075,67745026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07349532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38652036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18652537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,987 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>								
45026.3184,5624,7895,0275,2815,5475,82545526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0445,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07349532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6045,1845,207,9878,38652036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	445		-					
45526.9714,6754,9065,1505,4075,6855,96946027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,68976,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38652036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,388 <t< td=""><td>450</td><td>26.318</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	450	26.318						
46027.6314,7895,0275,2815,5475,8196,10946528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,7945,508,18452036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,1845,533,9633,5075,8188,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,8075,555,563	455	26.971						
46528.3044,9065,1505,4075,6855,9636,26147029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	460	27.631						
47029.0025,0275,2815,5475,8196,1076,41347529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38652036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	465	28.304						
47529.7135,1505,4075,6855,9636,2606,57348030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	470	29.002						
48030.4685,2815,5475,8196,1076,4126,73248531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807		29.713						
48531.1915,4075,6855,9636,2606,5696,89749032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	480	30.468						
49032.0045,5475,8196,1076,4126,7417,07749532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	485	31.191						
49532.7975,6855,9636,2606,5696,8957,23950033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	490		5,547					
50033.5715,8196,1076,4126,7417,0737,42750534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807		32.797	5,685			6,569		
50534.4035,9636,2606,5696,8957,2447,60451035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	500	33.571	5,819	6,107	6,412	6,741	7,073	7,427
51035.2346,1076,4126,7417,0737,4237,79451536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807		34.403						
51536.1166,2606,5696,8957,2447,6077,98752036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807	510	35.234	6,107		6,741	7,073		
52036.9926,4126,7417,0737,4237,7958,18452537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807		36.116						
52537.8996,5696,8957,2447,6077,9878,38653038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807								
53038.8896,7417,0737,4237,7958,1868,59753539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807		37.899						
53539.7786,8957,2447,6077,9878,3888,807								
	540							

\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

# UNIT I SALARY SCHEDULE

AR 5241.1

## Effective Date: July 1, 2022 Monthly Salary Ranges and Hourly Equivalents

Bilingual/	Bi-Literate Salary S	<u>chedule</u>					
Range	Step "A" Hourly						
Number	Equivalent	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>	<u>4</u>	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
610	\$13.555	\$2,350	\$2,474	\$2,592	\$2,726	\$2,863	\$3,006
615	13.930	2,415	2,543	2,663	2,802	2,937	3,084
620	14.273	2,474	2,592	2,726	2,863	3,000	3,149
625	14.672	2,543	2,663	2,802	2,937	3,091	3,245
630	14.952	2,592	2,726	2,863	3,000	3,155	3,313
635	15.364	2,663	2,802	2,937	3,091	3,238	3,400
640	15.726	2,726	2,863	3,000	3,155	3,311	3,477
645	16.164	2,802	2,937	3,091	3,238	3,410	3,581
650	16.519	2,863	3,000	3,155	3,311	3,484	3,658
655	16.944	2,937	3,091	3,238	3,410	3,576	3,754
660	17.306	3,000	3,155	3,311	3,484	3,654	3,837
665	17.833	3,091	3,238	3,410	3,576	3,751	3,939
670	18.201	3,155	3,311	3,484	3,654	3,837	4,029
675	18.683	3,238	3,410	3,576	3,751	3,935	4,132
680	19.102	3,311	3,484	3,654	3,837	4,029	4,231
685	19.673	3,410	3,576	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,352
690	20.098	3,484	3,654	3,837	4,029	4,235	4,446
695	20.631	3,576	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,561
700	21.082	3,654	3,837	4,029	4,235	4,450	4,672
705	21.640	3,751	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,783
710	22.135	3,837	4,029	4,235	4,450	4,671	4,904
715	22.700	3,935	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,029
720	23.246	4,029	4,235	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,150
725	23.906	4,144	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,025	5,276
730	24.433	4,235	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,407
735	25.055	4,343	4,555	4,789	5,025	5,277	5,540
740	25.670	4,450	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,680
745	26.279	4,555	4,789	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,818
750	26.946	4,671	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,965
755	27.631	4,789	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,115
760	28.298	4,905	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,260
765	28.989	5,025	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,414
770	29.706	5,149	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,567
775	30.443	5,277	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,411	6,731
780	31.210	5,410	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,897
785	31.966	5,541	5,825	6,108	6,411	6,728	7,064
790	32.778	5,682	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,251
795	33.603	5,825	6,108	6,411	6,728	7,063	7,417
800	34.396	5,962	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,610
805	35.240	6,108	6,411	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,791
810	36.084	6,255	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,602	7,983
815	36.985	6,411	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183
820	37.899	6,569	6,906	7,247	7,602	7,986	8,385
825	38.813	6,728	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183	8,591
830	39.841	6,906	7,247	7,602	7,986	8,383	8,802
835	40.749	7,063	7,421	7,794	8,183	8,592	9,022
\$95/mo. l	ongevity @ 10 vear	s: \$150/mo. lona	evity @ 15 vears: \$	200/mo. lonaevitv @	@ 20 vears: \$250/m	io. longevity @ 25 v	ears

\$95/mo. longevity @ 10 years; \$150/mo. longevity @ 15 years; \$200/mo. longevity @ 20 years; \$250/mo. longevity @ 25 years

# Cost of Coverage – Tenthly

# Employees hired before 7/1/2022

Please note that unless your domestic partner is your tax dependent as defined by the IRS, contributions for domestic partner coverage must be made after-tax. Similarly, the company contribution toward coverage for your domestic partner and his/her dependents will be reported as taxable income on your W-2. Contact your tax advisor for more details on how this tax treatment applies to you. Notify the Benefits Desk if your domestic partner is your tax dependent.

### Employees working more than 75% or more (6-8 hours per day).

	M	edical	Dent	al	Vision
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$724.42	\$1,061.82	\$18.28	\$60.68	\$11.36
Employee Only Pays	\$80.48	\$117.98	\$2.03	\$6.74	\$1.26
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$1,448.82	\$2,123.64	\$31.30	\$123.40	\$16.60
Employee + 1 Pays	\$160.98	\$235.96	\$3.48	\$13.70	\$1.86
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$2,190.42	\$3,004.94	\$46.94	\$177.22	\$30.22
Employee + Family Pays	\$243.38	\$333.88	\$5.20	\$19.70	\$3.36

	М	edical	Dent	al	Vision
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$543.30	\$796.36	\$13.70	\$45.50	\$11.36
Employee Only Pays	\$261.60	\$383.44	\$6.60	\$21.92	\$1.26
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$1,086.62	\$1,592.74	\$23.48	\$92.54	\$16.60
Employee + 1 Pays	\$523.18	\$766.86	\$11.30	\$44.56	\$1.86
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$1,642.82	\$2,253.70	\$35.20	\$132.92	\$30.22
Employee + Family Pays	\$790.98	\$1,085.12	\$16.94	\$64.00	\$3.36

#### Employees working 50% (4 hours per day).

	M	Medical		Dental	
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$362.20	\$530.90	\$9.14	\$30.34	\$11.36
Employee Only Pays	\$442.70	\$648.90	\$11.16	\$37.08	\$1.26
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$724.40	\$1,061.82	\$15.66	\$61.70	\$16.60
Employee + 1 Pays	\$885.40	\$1,297.78	\$19.12	\$75.40	\$1.86
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$1,095.20	\$1,502.48	\$23.46	\$88.62	\$30.22
Employee + Family Pays	\$1,338.60	\$1,836.34	\$28.68	\$108.30	\$3.36

# Cost of Coverage – Tenthly

# Employees hired 7/1/2022 and after

Please note that unless your domestic partner is your tax dependent as defined by the IRS, contributions for domestic partner coverage must be made after-tax. Similarly, the company contribution toward coverage for your domestic partner and his/her dependents will be reported as taxable income on your W-2. Contact your tax advisor for more details on how this tax treatment applies to you. Notify the Benefits Desk if your domestic partner is your tax dependent.

### Employees working more than 75% or more (6-8 hours per day).

	Medical		Dental		Vision
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$643.92	\$943.84	\$16.24	\$53.94	\$10.10
Employee Only Pays	\$160.98	\$235.96	\$4.06	\$13.48	\$2.52
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$1,287.84	\$1,887.68	\$27.82	\$109.68	\$14.78
Employee + 1 Pays	\$321.96	\$471.92	\$6.96	\$27.42	\$3.68
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$1,947.04	\$2,671.06	\$41.72	\$157.54	\$26.86
Employee + Family Pays	\$486.76	\$667.76	\$10.42	\$39.38	\$6.72

	M	Medical		Dental	
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$482.94	\$707.88	\$12.18	\$40.46	\$10.10
Employee Only Pays	\$321.96	\$471.92	\$8.12	\$26.96	\$2.52
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$965.88	\$1,415.76	\$20.88	\$82.26	\$14.78
Employee + 1 Pays	\$643.92	\$943.84	\$13.90	\$54.84	\$3.68
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$1,460.28	\$2,003.30	\$31.28	\$118.16	\$26.86
Employee + Family Pays	\$973.52	\$1,335.52	\$20.86	\$78.76	\$6.72

#### Employees working 50% (4 hours per day).

	Medical		Dental		Vision
	Kaiser DHMO	Blue Shield PPO	MetLife HMO	Delta PPO	VSP
Tenthly Premium	\$804.90	\$1,179.80	\$20.30	\$67.42	\$12.62
District Contribution	\$321.96	\$471.92	\$8.12	\$26.96	\$10.10
Employee Only Pays	\$482.94	\$707.88	\$12.18	\$40.46	\$2.52
Tenthly Premium	\$1,609.80	\$2,359.60	\$34.78	\$137.10	\$18.46
District Contribution	\$643.92	\$943.84	\$13.90	\$54.84	\$14.78
Employee + 1 Pays	\$965.88	\$1,415.76	\$20.88	\$82.26	\$3.68
Tenthly Premium	\$2,433.80	\$3,338.82	\$52.14	\$196.92	\$33.58
District Contribution	\$973.52	\$1,335.52	\$20.86	\$78.76	\$26.86
Employee + Family Pays	\$1,460.28	\$2,003.30	\$31.28	\$118.16	\$6.72

# Kaiser Medical Deductible HMO with HRA APPENDIX B - PAGE 49

With your health plan, most preventive care services—like routine physical exams, mammograms, and cholesterol screenings—are covered at little or no cost to you. For most other covered services, you'll pay just a copay or coinsurance after you reach your deductible\*. **Note:** the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) pays the first \$1,500 of medical expenses for each enrolled member. Rx copays are not reimbursable via the HRA.

#### Important:

- Enrolled members must sign on to the Health Payment Online Portal at <u>kp.org/healthpayment</u> to use and manage your account
- Review next page for additional information and the FAQs
- Use your HRA to pay for the medical deductible, copays and coinsurance
- To learn more visit my.kp.org/dusd.

For services that apply to the Plan Out-of-Pocket Maximum, you will not pay any more cost share for the rest of the Accumulation Period once you have reached the amounts listed below. Accumulation Period is 10/1 – 9/30 (plan year).

	Self-Only Coverage	Family Coverage ( <u>each</u> member in a family of two or more members)	Family Coverage ( <u>entire</u> family of two or more members)
Medical Services Deductible	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$2,000
*Deductible after HRA Reimbursement	\$0	\$0	\$0
Plan Out-of-Pocket Maximum	\$2,000	\$2,000	\$4,000
Out-of-Pocket Maximum after using HRA for covered medical expenses	\$500	\$500	\$1,000

Medical Services	Member Cost Share		HRA Reimbursable
Primary Care Physician	\$20 per visit after deductible	\$20 per visit after deductible*	
Physician Specialist	\$20 per visit after deductible	*	Yes
Preventive Services	No charge		N/A
Urgent Care	\$20 per visit after deductible	*	Yes
Outpatient Surgery	20% after deductible		Yes
X-rays and Laboratory Tests	\$10 per encounter after dedu	uctible*	Yes
Hospitalization Services	20% after deductible*		Yes
Emergency Room (waived if admitted)	20% after deductible*		Yes
Ambulance Services	\$150 per trip after deductible	\$150 per trip after deductible*	
Durable Medical Equipment	20% (deductible doesn't appl	20% (deductible doesn't apply)	
Pharmacy Drug Coverage	Сорау	Copay Supply Limit	
Generic	\$10 (ded. doesn't apply)	Up to 30 days	Not eligible for HRA reimbursement
Brand-Name	\$30 (ded. doesn't apply)	Up to 30 days	Not eligible for HRA reimbursement
Specialty	20% up to \$250 (ded. doesn't apply)		
Mail-Order Drug Coverage	Сорау		
Generic	\$20 (ded. doesn't apply)	Up to 100 days	Not eligible for HRA reimbursement
Brand-Name	\$60 (ded. doesn't apply)	Up to 100 days	Not eligible for HRA reimbursement
Specialty	N/A	N/A	N/A

# Blue Shield Medical PPO

To find an in-network provider visit <u>blueshieldca.com</u> and select Blue Shield of California PPO network or call member services.

	In-Network	Out-of-Network <sup>1</sup>
Medical Calendar Year Deductible	\$250 individual/ \$750 family	\$500 individual/ \$1,500 family
Medical Calendar Year Out-of-Pocket Max	\$750 individual/ \$2,250 family	\$3,500 individual/ \$10,500 family (combined with in-network)
Physician/Specialist Office Visit	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Teladoc <sup>2</sup> - Online Visit	\$10 copay per visit (deductible waived)	Not covered
Preventive Services	No charge	30% coinsurance after deductible
Diagnostic X-ray and Lab	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Scans: CT, CAT, MRI, PET etc.	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Inpatient Hospitalization	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Physician Services	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Outpatient Facility Services		
Surgery in an Ambulatory Surgery Center	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Surgery in a Hospital	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Urgent Care	\$30 copay after deductible	50% coinsurance after deductible
Emergency Room (copay waived if admitted)	\$100 copay per visit (deductible waived)	
Ambulance Services (ground or air)	10% coinsurance	after deductible
Durable Medical Equipment	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Acupuncture	Not covered	Not covered
Chiropractic Care (up to 50 visits per year)	10% coinsurance after deductible	30% coinsurance after deductible
Hearing Aids <sup>3</sup> (deductible waived)	\$2,000 allowance every 24 months	\$2,000 allowance every 24 months
Prescription Drugs <sup>4</sup>		
Calendar Year Deductible		one
Calendar Year Out-of-Pocket Max	\$250 individual/	\$750 per family
In-Network Costs	Retail Pharmacy	Mail Order
Tier 1 drugs	\$5 copay	\$10 copay
Tier 2 drugs	\$25 copay	\$50 copay
Tier 3 drugs	\$45 copay	\$90 copay
Tier 4 drugs (excluding specialty drugs)	30% up to \$150	30% up to \$300
Tier 4 Specialty drugs	30% up to \$150	Not covered
Supply Limit	Up to a 30-day	Up to a 90-day

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Non-participating providers can charge more than Blue Shield's allowable amounts. When members use non-participating providers, they must pay the applicable deductibles, copayments or coinsurance plus any amount that exceeds Blue Shield's allowable amount. Charges above the allowable amount do not count toward the calendar year medical deductible or out-of-pocket maximum

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Virtual access to providers and therapists.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Review the plan document for coverage details and limitations or call member services.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>See benefit summary or SBC for non-participating retail copayments.

# Dental Plans – PPO or HMO

#### **Delta Dental PPO Plan**

Under the Delta Dental PPO plan, Delta Dental pays a percentage of the allowed fees for covered diagnostic, preventive, basic and major services. No member ID cards are distributed with this dental plan - simply provide your dentist with your name, social security number, and that you are on the Delta Dental PPO plan. To find a dentist visit <u>deltadentalins.com/enrollees</u> or call (800) 765-6003.

#### IF YOU HAVE ADDITIONAL COVERAGE (DUAL COVERAGE)

It is to your advantage to let your dentist and Delta Dental know if you have dental coverage in addition to this Delta Dental plan. Most dental carriers cooperate with one another to coordinate payments and still allow you to make use of both plans sometimes paying 100% of your dental bill. For example, you might have some fillings that cost \$100. If the primary carrier usually pays 80% for these services, it would pay \$80. The secondary carrier might usually pay 50% for this service. In this case, however, the secondary plan's payment is limited to the amount of your out-of-pocket cost under the primary plan, the secondary carrier pays the remaining \$20 only. Since this method pays 100% of the bill, you have no out-of-pocket expense.

#### MetLife SafeGuard DHMO Plan

You and your eligible dependents must select a primary dentist from the SafeGuard DHMO directory. To find a dentist visit <u>www.metlife.com/mybenefits</u> or call (800) 880-1800.

	Delta PPO <sup>1</sup>		MetLife DHMO
	In-Network	Out-Of-Network <sup>2</sup>	In-Network
Calendar Year Deductible	No	one	None
Annual Plan Maximum	\$2,000 per person	each calendar year	Not applicable
	(January 1 –	December 31)	
Diagnostic & Preventive Services			
Exams			Copays vary by service;
Cleanings	Plan pa	ys 100%	see contract for fee
X-Rays			schedule
Sealants			
Basic Services			
Fillings, denture repair and relining			Copays vary by service;
Endodontics	Plan pa	ys 100%	see contract for fee
Periodontics			schedule
Oral surgery			
Major Services			Copays vary by service;
Crowns, inlays, onlays, cast restorations	Plan pa	ys 100%	see contract for fee
Implants			schedule
Prosthodontics	You pay 50%	You pay 50%	Copays vary by service;
Bridges and dentures			see contract for fee
			schedule
Orthodontic Services	Child to age 18		Adults and Children
Orthodontic Lifetime Maximum	50% up 1	to \$1,000	Up to \$1,350
			Copays vary by service;
			see contract for fee
			schedule

# Vision – VSP Choice



	VSP Provider Network: VSP Choice		
	In-Network	Out-Of-Network <sup>1</sup>	
Examination			
Benefit	Plan pays 100%	Plan reimburses up to \$45	
Frequency	1 x every 12 months	In-network limitations apply	
Eyeglass Lenses (Standard)			
Single Vision Lens	\$0 copay	Plan reimburses up to \$45	
Bifocal Lens	\$0 copay	Plan reimburses up to \$65	
Trifocal Lens	\$0 copay	Plan reimburses up to \$85	
Frequency	1 x every 12 months	In-network limitations apply	
Lens Enhancements			
Standard Progressive Lenses	\$50	Plan reimburses up to \$85	
Premium Progressive Lenses	\$80 - \$90	Plan reimburses up to \$85	
Custom Progressive Lenses	\$120 - \$160	Plan reimburses up to \$85	
Tints/Photochromics/UV & Scratch Coating	Covered in full	Not covered	
Frames <sup>2</sup>			
Benefit (copay combined with exam)	Plan pays up to \$120 allowance + 20% discount	Plan reimburses up to \$47	
	Plan pays up to \$120 allowance for Costco <sup>®</sup> frames		
	Plan pays up to \$140 allowance for Featured Frame Brands		
Frequency	1 x every 24 months	In-network limitations apply	
Contacts <sup>3</sup> (Elective)			
Benefit (fitting & evaluation)	Plan pays up to \$120 allowance	Plan reimburses up to \$105	
Frequency	1 x every 12 months	In-network limitations apply	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> If you choose to, you may receive covered benefits outside of the VSP Choice network. Just pay in full at the time of service, obtain an itemized receipt, and file a claim for reimbursement of your out-of-network allowance. In-network benefits and discounts will not apply. Out-of-Network Claim Forms located online: <u>www.vsp.com</u>. Login to your account and access the *Benefits & Claims* section. You will be asked to upload your receipts or you may mail in receipts. <sup>2</sup> You may select an eyeglass frame and receive an allowance toward the purchase price.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> In-lieu of frames.

DOWNEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT * REVISED 2-22-22 2022 ~ 2023 SCHOOL CALENDAR			
State Holiday Local Holiday Studen	t / Teacher Student Free Day / Staff Development Days Worked: 185 Days Taught: 180		
July 2022       M     TU     W     TH     F       -     -     1     4th - Independence Day Holiday (observed)       4     5     6     7     8       11     12     13     14     15       18     19     20     21     22       25     26     27     28     29	January 2023     6th School Month: 1/2/2023 ~ 1/27/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 16 / Days Taught: 16       2     3     4     5     6     2nd - New Year's Day (observed)       9     10     11     12     13     2nd - 6th - Winter Break-Students/Teachers       16     17     18     19     20     2nd - 6th - Winter Break-Students/Teachers       23     24     25     26     27     16th - Martin Luther King Day Holiday       30     31     1     1     27th - Progress Reports (ES)		
August 2022     1st School Month: 8/15/2022 ~ 9/9/2022       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 13 / Days Taught: 11       1     2     3     4     5       8     9     10     11     12       15     16     17     18     19       22     23     24     25     26       29     30     31     -	February 2023     7th School Month: 1/30/2023 ~ 2/24/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 17 / Days Taught: 17       1     2     3     6th - Student / Teacher Free Day       6     7     8     9     10       13     14     15     16     17       20     21     22     23     24       27     28     24th - Progress Reports (MS)		
September 2022     2nd School Month: 9/12/2022 ~ 10/7/2022       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 21 / Days Taught: 21       5     6     7     8     9     9th - Progress Reports (HS)       12     13     14     15     16     16th - Progress Reports (MS)       19     20     21     22     23     23rd - Progress Reports (ES)	March 2023     8th School Month: 2/27/2023 ~ 3/24/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 22 / Days Taught: 22       -     1     2     3     15th - Report Cards Go Home (ES)       6     7     8     9     10       13     14     15     16     17       20     21     22     23     24       27     28     29     30     31		
October 2022     3rd School Month: 10/10/2022 ~ 11/04/2022       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 21 / Days Taught: 20       3     4     5     6     7       10     11     12     13     14       17     18     19     20     21       24     25     26     27     28       31     -     -     -     -	Kpril 2023     9th School Month: 3/27/2023 ~ 4/21/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 14 / Days Taught: 14       3     4     5     6     7     7th - Progress Reports (MS)       10     11     12     13     14     *7th - 14th - Spring Break - Students / Teachers       17     18     19     20     21     21st - Progress Reports (ES)       24     25     26     27     28		
November 2022     4th School Month: 11/7/2021 ~ 12/2/2022       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 16 / Days Taught: 16       1     2     3     4     4th - Progress Reports (HS)       7     8     9     10     11       14     15     16     17     18       21     22     23     24     25       28     29     30     1     15th - 18th - Minimum Day (ES) - Parent Conf.       21     22     23     24     25       28     29     30     23rd & 25th - Local Holiday All Employees       24th - Thanksgiving Day Holiday     24th - Thanksgiving Day Holiday	May 2023     10th School Month: 4/24/2023 ~ 5/19/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 22 / Days Taught: 22       1     2     3     4     5     5th - Progress Reports (HS)       8     9     10     11     12     29th - Memorial Day Holiday       15     16     17     18     19       22     23     24     25     26       29     30     31     -		
December 2022     5th School Month: 12/05/2022 ~ 12/30/2022       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 17 / Days Taught: 16       5     6     7     8     9     20th - 22nd - Minimum Day - Finals (HS)     22nd - Minimum Day - (MS) & (HS)     22nd - End of 1st Sem. (All Schools)     23rd - Student Free Day / Staff Development       19     20     21     22     23     26th - 30th - Winter Break-Students/Teachers     26th - 30th - Christmas Day Holiday (observed)     27th - Local Holiday	June 2023     11th School Month: 5/22/2023 ~ 6/8/2023       M     TU     W     TH     F     Days Worked: 6 / Days Taught: 5       1     1     2     5th - 7th - Minimum Day - Finals (HS)     5th - 7th - Minimum Day - End of School Year       5     6     7     8     9     7th - Minimum Day - End of School Year       12     13     14     15     16     8th - Student Free Day / Staff Development       19     20     21     22     23     Grades Due (MS) & (HS)       26     27     28     29     30     Teacher Check Out Day		

### 70.200 Application of Salary Schedule

#### 70.200.1 Appointments

All appointments, promotions, and salary increases, shall be recommended by the nominating authority, certified by the Classified Personnel Director, and approved by the Board.

#### 70.200.2 Initial Placement

- A. All salary advancements within each class shall not be automatic, but shall be based upon merit and fitness. Any and all advancements shall be contingent on the availability of funds.
- B. In most cases, new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the Board.
- C. In cases where a request is made in advance by the hiring authority to place an individual upon initial employment above the first step of the salary range, justification will be provided to the Classified Personnel Director by the hiring authority, who shall make a determination of the appropriateness of the advanced placement.
- D. Schedule of movement across salary steps after initial hire and/or promotion shall not be altered, but shall be in accordance with rule 70.200.3 A.

### 70.200.3 Step Advancement

- A. After the initial salary placement, each succeeding step may be granted one (1) year from the preceding step up to Step 5. Step 15 (for Unit I members only) will be recognized after 15 years in the classification.
- B. For the purpose of this rule, an appointment made between the first and fifteenth day of the month shall be considered as effective on the first day. Later appointments shall be considered as effective at the beginning of the next month.